
Table of Contents

 
Agenda 3
Request Approval of Regular Board Meeting Minutes of August
28, 2012

August 28, 2012 Board Minutes 8
Request Adoption of Resolution No. 09-2012/13 Operations
Application for K-3 Class Size Reduction

Agenda Item and K-3 CSR Application 20
Request Adoption of Resolution No.10-2012/13: GANN Limit
Calculations for 2011-12 actuals and 2012-13 estimated
actuals.

Agenda Item Cover and Resolution #10-2012/2013
GANN Limit Calculations 24

Request Ratification of Memorandum of Understanding between
Madera County Superintendent of Schools (MCSOS) and
Madera Unified School District for services provided in support
of the Educating Homeless Children and Youth Grant  (EHCY)
beginning July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2013.

Agenda Item Cover 29
MCSOS EHCY MOU 12-13 30

Request approval of Contract between Madera Unified School
District and Stanislaus County Office of Education to provide
English as a Second Language classes for two Migrant Head
Start Centers

Agenda Item Cover 33
Stanislaus Co. Office of Ed - Contract 34

Request Approval of We Give Books/Pearson Foundation Read
for the Record Book Grant Agreement between Madera Unified
and Pearson Foundation

Agenda Item Cover 38
Pearson Book Grant Agreement 39

Request approval of Consultant Services Agreement between
Madera Unified School District and Houghton Mifflin Harcourt/
Riverside Publishing

Agenda Item Cover 40
HMH Agreement 41

Request approval of the Memorandum of Understanding for the
Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Education (SNAP-
Ed) between Madera County Public Health Department
(MCPHD) and Madera Unified School District (MUSD)

Agenda Item Cover 43
SNAP-Ed MOU 44
HOM Content Standard 47

Request Approval of Amendment 1 of 2012-13 Child
Development Contract CSPP-2270 between Madera Unified
School District and California Department of Education.

Agenda Item Cover 49
Amendment 1 50

1



Request Approval of Memorandums of Understanding between
Madera Unified School District and Bass Lake Joint Union
Elementary School District, Chawanakee Unified School District,
Chowchilla Elementary School District, Chowchilla Union High
School District, Golden Valley Unified School District, Madera
County Office of Education, Ezequiel Tafoya Alvarado
Academy, and Sherman Thomas Charter School

Agenda Item Cover 68
MOU Sample 69

Request Approval of June 30, 2012 Student Body Statement of
Club Trust Accounts

June 30, 2012 Student Body Accounts 73
Request Approval of Staffing and Coaches Lists

Staffing List 9-11-12 80
Coaches List 9-11-12 81

Field Trips 9/11/12
Student Overnight or Out of State Field Trips 83

Request Adoption of a Resolution that approves the School
Facility Needs Analysis authorizing the levying of alternative
school facility fees on residential development.

Agenda Item Cover 84
School Facility Needs Analysis 85
Resolution No. 11-2012/13 112
Resolution No. 12-2012/13 119

Request Approval of Agreement between Madera Adult
Educators (MAE) and Madera Unified School District
(DISTRICT) for the 2012-2013 School Year

Agenda Item Cover 127
Tentative Agreement & Public Disclosure 128

Request approval to award a construction contract to the lowest
responsible and responsive bid for the 1 Relocatable Classroom
at Pershing project.

Agenda Item Cover 141
Request Approval of 2011-12 Unaudited Actuals Financial
Report

Agenda Item Cover & 2011-12 Financial Report 142
The Governing Board is requested to adopt the findings,
conclusions and recommendations related to the possible
expulsion or readmission of pupils as these are presented to the
board in one or more of the following forms of documentation:

Agenda Item Cover 172
Request Approval of Commercial Warrant Listing

Agenda Item Cover and Commercial Warrant Listing 173

2



Audio File No. 04 – 2012/13 

MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Every Child, Every Day, Whatever it Takes! 
 

Board of Trustees Meeting 

AGENDA 

Regular Meeting 

Tuesday, September 11, 2012 
Madera Unified School District Boardroom – 1902 Howard Road, Madera, California 93637 

5:30 PM – Closed Session    •    7:00 PM – Public Meeting 
 

7:30 PM PUBLIC HEARING:  School Facility Needs Analysis authorizing the levying of  
  alternative school facility fees on residential development. 

 
OUR MISSION 

Highest Student Achievement 
Orderly Learning Environment 

Financially Sound and Effective Organization 
 
 

The public is welcome to comment on any item listed on the Closed Session agenda 
immediately following the Call to Order of Public Meeting at 5:30 p.m. 

 
1. 5:30 PM: Call to Order of Public Meeting – Closed Session Immediately Convened 
 Public Hearing for visitors who wish to address the Board on Closed Session items: 
 Fifteen minutes of this portion of the meeting are reserved for members of the public to address  
 the Board on Closed Session items. Speakers seeking to comment on other items are requested to  
 make those comments during the Public Comment portion of the meeting at 7:00 p.m. Speakers  
 are limited to three (3) minutes.  The School Board is prohibited by law from taking  
 action on matters discussed that are not on the Agenda, and no adverse conclusions should be  
 drawn if the School Board does not respond to public comment at this time.  If you wish to  
 address the Board, come to the microphone and state your name and address. 
 
 A. Personnel 
  1. Public Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Reassignment/Resignation 
   (Government Code Section 54957, 54957.1) 
  2. Public Employee Appointment/Employment—Staffing List 
   (Government Code Section 54957) 
 B. Pupil Personnel Matters 
  1. Student Hearings/Expulsions (Education Code 35146, 48900, 48918) 
 C. Conference With Labor Negotiator; District Representative: Tracie Green; Employee  
  Organizations:  MUTA, CSEA (Government Code section 54957.6) 
 D. Anticipated Litigation pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section 54954.9 
 E. Superintendent’s Evaluation 
 F. Adjournment of Closed Session 
 

7:00 PM – Public Meeting Begins 

3



Audio File No. 04 – 2012/13 

 
2. Reconvene Public Session 
 
3. Pledge of Allegiance, Opening and Acknowledgement of Visitors and Media, Invocation, 
 and Roll Call 
 
4. Closed Session Reportable Actions (Government Code Section 54957.1) 
 
5. Adoption of Agenda 
 Action to add or delete items from any portion of the agenda or to discuss any consent agenda 
 items must be taken prior to adoption of the agenda (Board Bylaw 9323.2). 
 
6. Student Board Representative Report 
 
 Madera South High: Enrique Quintanilla 
 Madera High: Rida Qaiser 
 
7. Communications 
 A. Student and Staff Recognition 

o Celebrating Hispanic Heritage poster contest winners – AMAE 
  
 B. Public Hearing for visitors who wish to speak on a subject not on the board agenda. 
  Fifteen minutes of this portion of the meeting are reserved for members of the public to address  
  the Board on items not listed on the agenda and within the jurisdiction of the School Board.   
  Speakers are limited to three (3) minutes.  If the subject is an item on the Agenda, the Board  
  President has the option of asking the speaker to hold the comment until that item is called.  
  Comments on items listed as a Public Hearing on the Agenda should be held until the hearing is  
  opened. The School Board is prohibited by law from taking action on matters discussed that are  
  not on the Agenda, and no adverse conclusions should be drawn if the School Board does not  
  respond to public comment at this time.  If you wish to address the Board, come to the  
  microphone and state your name and address. 
 
8. Consent Agenda 
 Items listed under the consent agenda are considered to be routine and are acted on by the Board of 
 Trustees in one motion.  There is no discussion of these items prior to the Board vote unless a member of 
 the Board or staff requests specific items be considered and discussed separately and/or removed from 
 the Consent Agenda prior to the adoption of the Agenda.  It is understood that the Administration 
 recommends approval on all consent items.  Each item on the consent agenda approved by the Board of 
 Trustees shall be deemed to have been considered in full and adopted as recommended. 
 
 A. Routine Business Transactions, Annual Renewal of Programs, Bids, Agreements, Notices 
  of Public Hearings, and Proclamations: 
 

1. Request Approval of Regular Board Meeting Minutes of August 28, 2012 
 August 28, 2012 Board Minutes 
 
2. Request Adoption of Resolution No. 09-2012/13 Operations Application for K-3 

Class Size Reduction 
 Agenda Item and K-3 CSR Application 
 
3. Request Adoption of Resolution No.10-2012/13: GANN Limit Calculations for 

2011-12 actuals and 2012-13 estimated actuals. 
 Agenda Item Cover and Resolution #10-2012/2013 GANN Limit Calculations 

4



Audio File No. 04 – 2012/13 

4. Request Ratification of Memorandum of Understanding between Madera County 
Superintendent of Schools (MCSOS) and Madera Unified School District for 
services provided in support of the Educating Homeless Children and Youth 
Grant (EHCY) beginning July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2013. 

 Agenda Item Cover 
 MCSOS EHCY MOU 12-13 
 
5. Request approval of Contract between Madera Unified School District and 

Stanislaus County Office of Education to provide English as a Second Language 
classes for two Migrant Head Start Centers 

 Agenda Item Cover 
 Stanislaus Co. Office of Ed - Contract  
 
6. Request Approval of We Give Books/Pearson Foundation Read for the Record 

Book Grant Agreement between Madera Unified and Pearson Foundation 
 Agenda Item Cover 
 Pearson Book Grant Agreement 
 
7. Request approval of Consultant Services Agreement between Madera Unified 

School District and Houghton Mifflin Harcourt/ Riverside Publishing 
 Agenda Item Cover 
 HMH Agreement 
 
8. Request approval of the Memorandum of Understanding for the Supplemental 

Nutrition Assistance Program Education (SNAP-Ed) between Madera County 
Public Health Department (MCPHD) and Madera Unified School District (MUSD) 

 Agenda Item Cover 
 SNAP-Ed MOU 
 HOM Content Standard 
 
9. Request Approval of Amendment 1 of 2012-13 Child Development Contract 

CSPP-2270 between Madera Unified School District and California Department of 
Education. 

 Agenda Item Cover 
 Amendment 1  
 
10. Request Approval of Memorandums of Understanding between Madera Unified 

School District and Bass Lake Joint Union Elementary School District, 
Chawanakee Unified School District, Chowchilla Elementary School District, 
Chowchilla Union High School District, Golden Valley Unified School District, 
Madera County Office of Education, Ezequiel Tafoya Alvarado Academy, and 
Sherman Thomas Charter School 

 Agenda Item Cover 
 MOU Sample 
 
11. Request Approval of June 30, 2012 Student Body Statement of Club Trust 

Accounts 
 June 30, 2012 Student Body Accounts 

 
 B. Human Resources Items 
 

1. Request Approval of Staffing and Coaches Lists 
   Staffing List 9-11-12 

5



Audio File No. 04 – 2012/13 

   Coaches List 9-11-12 
 
 C. Field Trip/Employee Conference Requests 
  1.  Field Trips 9/11/12 
   Student Overnight or Out of State Field Trips 
 
9. Old Business 
 None 
 
7:30 PM PUBLIC HEARING:  School Facility Needs Analysis authorizing the levying of   
    alternative school facility fees on residential development. 
 
 
10. New Business 
 

A. Request Adoption of a Resolution that approves the School Facility Needs Analysis 
authorizing the levying of alternative school facility fees on residential development 

  Agenda Item Cover 
  School Facility Needs Analysis 
  Resolution No. 11-2012/13 
  Resolution No. 12-2012/13 
 

B. Request Approval of Agreement between Madera Adult Educators (MAE) and Madera 
Unified School District (DISTRICT) for the 2012-2013 School Year 

  Agenda Item Cover 
  Tentative Agreement & Public Disclosure 
 

C. Request approval to award a construction contract to the lowest responsible and 
responsive bid for the 1 Relocatable Classroom at Pershing project. 

  Agenda Item Cover 
 

D. Request Approval of 2011-12 Unaudited Actuals Financial Report 
  Agenda Item Cover & 2011-12 Financial Report 
 

E. The Governing Board is requested to adopt the findings, conclusions and 
recommendations related to the possible expulsion or readmission of pupils as these are 
presented to the board in one or more of the following forms of documentation:  
 
• Reports(s) of Administrative hearing Panel(s) 
• Expulsion Status Review Report(s) by the Superintendent’s Designee 
• Stipulated Expulsion Agreement(s) 
 
The Governing Board is also requested to issue orders consistent with the above 
referenced findings, conclusions and recommendations related to the possible expulsion 
or readmission of pupils in the cases of the following students, herein identified by their 
district-assigned identification numbers:  200457, 200702, 5296, 202623, 16395, 5184, 
304090, 203207, 17628, 401697, 202779, 202311, 303579, 15473, and 303630.   

  Agenda Item Cover 
 

F. Request Approval of Commercial Warrant Listing 
  Agenda Item Cover and Commercial Warrant Listing 
 
 

6



Audio File No. 04 – 2012/13 

11. Information and Reports 
 

A. Superintendent’s Time 
 
12. Announcements 
 
13. Miscellaneous 
 
 A. Board Member Committee and Information Reports 
 
14. Advanced Planning 
 
 Next Regular Board Meeting 
 Tuesday, September 25, 2012 at 7:00 p.m. 
 Madera Unified School District Boardroom – 1902 Howard Road, Madera, California 93637 
 
15. Suggested Future Agenda Items 
 
16. Adjournment 

 
 

 

Board Room Accessibility:  The Madera Unified School District encourages those with disabilities 
to participate fully in the public meeting process.  If you need a disability-related modification or 
accommodation to participate in the public meeting, please contact the Office of the Superintendent 
at 559-675-4500 extension 220 at least 48 hours before the scheduled Board of Trustees meeting 
so that we may make every reasonable effort to accommodate you. [Government Code § 54954.2; 
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, § 202 (42 U.S.C. § 12132).] 

7



MINUTE RECORD of Madera Unified School District Board of Education 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING HELD ON THE 28TH DAY OF AUGUST 2012 

 1 

The Board of Education of the Madera Unified School District convened in a Regular Board Meeting 
in the Madera Unified School District Boardroom, 1902 Howard Road, Madera, California on 
Tuesday, August 22, 2012, at 5:30 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL 
Ricardo Arredondo, President 
Michael Salvador, Clerk 
  
Lynn Cogdill, Trustee 
Robert E. Garibay, Trustee 
Jose Rodriguez, Trustee 
Ray G. Seibert, Trustee 
Maria Velarde-Garcia, Trustee 
 
Gustavo Balderas, Superintendent 
Dr. Anthony Monreal, Deputy Superintendent 
Deborah A. Wood, Associate Superintendent, Educational Services 
Teri Bradshaw, Director, Fiscal Services 
Tracie Green, Director, Human Resources 
Robert Chavez, Chief Academic Officer 
Janet Morgan, Senior Administrative Assistant 
 
Brett Moglia, Security Supervisor 
Kent Albertson, Principal, Madera High School 
Joe Ayala, Systems Administrator 
Rosalind Cox, Director of Facilities Operations and Construction/Purchasing 
Paul van Loon, Director of Student Services and Special Services 
Janet Grossnicklaus, Director of Curriculum, Instruction and Assessment 
Sandon Schwartz, Principal, Madera South High School 
Gladys Wilson, Translator 
Omar Jeronimo, Principal, Parkwood Elementary 
Curtis Manganaan, Director of Maintenance and Operations 
 
Danna Petty, CSEA President 
 
There were approximately 20 visitors/District employees in attendance. 
 
1. Call to Order of Public Meeting – Closed Session Immediately Convened 
 
President Arredondo called the Public Session of the Board of Education to order at 5:30 p.m. 
President Arredondo opened the floor to public comment on any item listed on the Closed Session 
Agenda. Seeing no one come forward, President Arredondo adjourned to Closed Session pursuant to 
Government Code Sections 54957, 54957.1, and 54957.6, and Education Code Sections 35146, 44951, 
48900, and 48918. 
 
2. Reconvene Public Session/Call to Order Regular Meeting 
 
3. Pledge of Allegiance, Opening, Acknowledgement of Visitors and Media, and 
 Invocation 
 

8



MINUTE RECORD of Madera Unified School District Board of Education 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING HELD ON THE 28TH DAY OF AUGUST 2012 

 2 

President Arredondo adjourned the Closed Session at 7:05 p.m. and reconvened the Regular Meeting 
by calling the Public Session to order at 7:09 p.m.  President Arredondo welcomed the visitors and 
asked Clerk Salvador to lead the flag salute.  President Arredondo asked Pastor Roger Leach of Valley 
West Christian Center to lead the invocation.  President Arredondo asked Ms. Morgan to call the Roll 
of Trustees. President Arredondo explained the rules governing the Board meeting.  The meeting was 
recorded on Audio File No. 03-2012/13. 
 
4. Closed Session Reportable Actions (Government Code Section 54957.1) 
 
Superintendent Balderas announced there were no reportable Closed Session actions. 
 
5. Adoption of Agenda – Motion No. 20-2012/13 
 
President Arredondo stated that if the Board and/or Administration determined they wished to add 
to the Agenda under Miscellaneous Items, this would be the appropriate time. 
 
Superintendent Balderas asked for Consent Item 7B1 to be pulled for separate vote. In addition, 
Superintendent Balderas asked for Consent Item 7A5 to be pulled from the agenda; no action will be 
taken on this item. 
 
It was moved by Clerk Salvador, seconded by Trustee Cogdill, and unanimously carried to 
adopt the Agenda as amended. 
 
 Ayes: Trustees Cogdill, Garibay, Rodriguez, Seibert, Velarde-Garcia, Clerk Salvador  
  and President Arredondo 
 Noes: None 
 Absent: None 
 Abstained: None 
 
6. Communications 
 
 6A. Public Hearing 
 President Arredondo opened the meeting for visitors to speak on a subject not on the 
 Board Agenda. 
 

o Danna Petty, MUSD employee and CSEA Chapter President; asked for an extreme heat 
schedule to be instituted; expressed disappointment in cancellation of July 18th negotiations 
date. 

o Chuck Genseal, 16759 Road 19; spoke regarding the Strategic Planning meeting he 
participated in; addressed community concerns expressed to him regarding long days for 
kinder students who ride an early bus and stay late for the after school program. 

o Donald Holley, 613 South B St.; acknowledge the pending retirement of the Superintendent’s 
Assistant. President Arredondo took this opportunity to congratulate Mr. Holley on his 
appointment to the Madera City Council. As an unopposed candidate, Mr. Holley is the 
presumed winner and will be seated in December. 

o Richard Parris, track coach at MSHS; invited the Board to the annual Cross Country 
Invitational scheduled for this weekend at Town and Country Park. Events get underway at 
8:00 am and will wrap up at noon. 

 
 

9



MINUTE RECORD of Madera Unified School District Board of Education 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING HELD ON THE 28TH DAY OF AUGUST 2012 

 3 

7. Approval of Consent Agenda – Motion Nos. 21 and 22-2012/13 
 Document Numbers 69-2012/13 through 76-2012/13 
 Resolution Number 08-2012/13 
 Staffing Changes, Exhibit B 
 Field Trip/Employee Conference Requests, Exhibit C 
 
 Prior to calling for a motion, President Arredondo opened the floor to public comment. 

 
 Seeing no one come forward, President Arredondo closed public comment and returned 
 the item to the Board for questions. 
 

It was moved by Clerk Salvador, seconded by Trustee Rodriguez, and unanimously 
carried to approve the Consent Agenda. 

 
 Ayes: Trustees Cogdill, Garibay, Rodriguez, Seibert, Velarde-Garcia, Clerk Salvador  
  and President Arredondo  
 Noes: None 
 Absent: None 
 Abstained: None 
 
  
 7A. Routine Business Transactions, Annual Renewal of Programs, Bids,   
  Agreements, Notices of Public Hearings, and Proclamations: 
 
  7A1. Approval of Regular Board Meeting Minutes of August 14, 2012 

 
  7A2. Approval of Resolution No. 08-2012/13 to Authorize Signatures on   
   Designated MUSD Accounts/Documents 
 
  Ayes: Trustees Cogdill, Garibay, Rodriguez, Seibert, Velarde-Garcia,  
   Clerk Salvador and President Arredondo  
  Noes: None 
  Absent: None 
  Abstained: None MOTION NO. 21-2012/13 
    RESOLUTION NO. 08-2012/13 
 
  7A3. Approval of Consultant Services Agreement between Madera Unified School  
   District and Linda Tuttle, retired certificated school nurse  
    DOCUMENT NO. 69-2012/13 
 
  7A4. Approval of Consultant Services Agreement between Madera Unified School  
   District and Kathryn Funk, retired certificated school nurse 
     DOCUMENT NO. 70-2012/13 
 
  7A5. Approval of Consultant Services Agreement between Madera Unified School  
   District and Houghton Mifflin Harcourt/Riverside Publishing 
     PULLED FROM AGENDA 
 
  7A6. Approval of individual agreements between Madera Unified School District  
   and thirty three (33) approved Supplemental Educational Services (SES)  

10



MINUTE RECORD of Madera Unified School District Board of Education 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING HELD ON THE 28TH DAY OF AUGUST 2012 

 4 

   providers by the California Department of Education to provide tutoring  
   services to students who are enrolled in Program Improvement schools 
     DOCUMENT NO. 71-2012/13 
 
  7A7. Approval of Change Order #2 for La Vina Paving Project 
     DOCUMENT NO. 72-2012/13 
 
  7A8. Approval of Change Order #3 for La Vina Project DOCUMENT NO. 73-2012/13 
 
  7A9. Approval of the 2012-13 Adopted Budgets for Sherman Thomas Charter,  
   Sherman Thomas Charter High, and Ezequiel Tafoya Alvarado Academy. 
      DOCUMENT NO. 74-2012/13 

 
 7B. Human Resources Items 
 
  7B1. Approval of Staffing Changes and Coaches  
 
  President Arredondo advised that he must recuse himself from voting on this item due 
  to a conflict of interest and passed the gavel to Clerk Salvador prior to exiting the  
  room. 
 
  Superintendent Balderas advised that Classified New Position, item #1, One Part-Time 
  Position, Classroom Aide, New Position (preschool) should be pulled from the agenda. 
  This item will be brought back as a replacement position rather than a new position. 
 
  It was moved by Trustee Velarde-Garcia, seconded by Trustee Cogdill, and  
  carried by majority to approve the Staffing Changes and Coaches as amended. 
 
  Ayes: Trustees Cogdill, Garibay, Rodriguez, Seibert, Velarde-Garcia, and 
   Clerk Salvador     
  Noes: None 
  Absent: None 
  Abstained: None 
  Recused: President Arredondo MOTION NO. 22-2012/13 
     DOCUMENT NO. 75-2012/13 
 
 Following approval of the staffing list, Superintendent Balderas introduced Parkwood 
 Principal Omar Jeronimo who then introduced Ismael Munoz the newly appointed Vice 
 Principal for Parkwood Elementary. 
 
 7C. Field Trip/Employee Conference Requests 
 
  7C1. Approval of Field Trip/Employee Conference Requests 
    DOCUMENT NO. 76-2012/13 
 
8. Old Business 
  
 8A. Second Reading and Approval of Revised Board Policies and Administrative   
  Regulations (7000 Series) 
 
 Superintendent Balderas recommended approval of this item. 

11



MINUTE RECORD of Madera Unified School District Board of Education 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING HELD ON THE 28TH DAY OF AUGUST 2012 

 5 

 
 Prior to calling for a motion, President Arredondo opened the floor to public comment. 

 
 Seeing no one come forward, President Arredondo closed public comment and returned 
 the item to the Board for questions and comments. 
 
 It was moved by Trustee Garibay, seconded by Clerk Salvador, and unanimously 
 carried to approve the Revised Board Policies and Administrative    
 Regulations (7000 Series) as written. 
 
 Ayes: Trustees Cogdill, Garibay, Rodriguez, Seibert, Velarde-Garcia, Clerk Salvador  
  and President Arredondo 
 Noes: None 
 Absent: None 
 Abstained: None MOTION NO. 23-2012/13 
     DOCUMENT NO. 77-2012/13 
 
 8B. Second Reading and Approval of Revised Board Policies, Administrative Regulations   
  and Exhibit 
 
 Superintendent Balderas recommended approval of this item. 
 
 Prior to calling for a motion, President Arredondo opened the floor to public comment. 

 
 Seeing no one come forward, President Arredondo closed public comment and returned 
 the item to the Board for questions and comments. 
 
 It was moved by Trustee Rodriguez, seconded by Trustee Velarde-Garcia, and 
 unanimously  carried to approve the Revised Board Policies, Administrative 
 Regulations, and Exhibit as written. 
 
 Ayes: Trustees Cogdill, Garibay, Rodriguez, Seibert, Velarde-Garcia, Clerk Salvador  
  and President Arredondo 
 Noes: None 
 Absent: None 
 Abstained: None MOTION NO. 24-2012/13 
     DOCUMENT NO. 78-2012/13 
 
 8C. Approval of the Madera Unified School District Strategic Action Plan 
  
 Superintendent Balderas provided brief background on this item and recommended approval 
 by the Board. 
 
 Prior to calling for a motion, President Arredondo opened the floor to public comment. 

 
 Seeing no one come forward, President Arredondo closed public comment and returned 
 the item to the Board for questions and comments. 
 
 It was moved by Clerk Salvador, seconded by Trustee Velarde-Garcia, and unanimously 
 carried to approve the Madera Unified School District Strategic Action Plan as written. 
 

12



MINUTE RECORD of Madera Unified School District Board of Education 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING HELD ON THE 28TH DAY OF AUGUST 2012 

 6 

 Ayes: Trustees Cogdill, Garibay, Rodriguez, Seibert, Velarde-Garcia, Clerk Salvador  
  and President Arredondo 
 Noes: None 
 Absent: None 
 Abstained: None MOTION NO. 25-2012/13 
     DOCUMENT NO. 79-2012/13 
 
9. New Business 
 
 9A. Approval to Adopt the Findings, Conclusions and Recommendations related to  
  the possible expulsion or readmission of pupils as these are presented to the  
  Board in one or more of the following forms of documentation: 

• Report(s) of Administrative Hearing Panel(s) 
• Expulsion Status Review Report(s) by the Superintendent’s Designee 
• Stipulated Expulsion Agreement(s) 

 
  The Governing Board is also requested to issue orders consistent with the   
  above referenced findings, conclusions and recommendations related to the   
  possible expulsion or readmission of pupils in the cases of the following   
  students, herein identified by their District-assigned identification numbers:   

997112, 301104, 303561, 201725, 303775, 401375, 200731, 201868, 5374, 401243, 
997603, 404113, 302366, 301706, 6930, 401210, 5160, and 5350 

 
  Trustee Velarde-Garcia advised that she must recuse herself due to a conflict of  
  interest. 

 
  Prior to calling for a motion, President Arredondo opened the floor to public   
  comment. 

 
  Seeing no one come forward, President Arredondo closed public comment and  
  returned the item to the Board for questions and comments. 

 
 It was moved by Clerk Salvador seconded by Trustee Garibay, and carried by 
 majority to approve the findings, conclusions and recommendations as stated 
 above. 

 
  Ayes:  Trustees Cogdill, Garibay, Rodriguez, Seibert, Clerk Salvador and  
    President Arredondo  
  Noes:  None 
  Absent:  None 
  Abstained: None 
  Recused: Trustee Velarde-Garcia MOTION NO. 26-2012/13 
     CONFIDENTIAL DOCUMENT NO. 80-2012/13 
  
 9B. Approval of Commercial Warrant Listing 
  Exhibit A, Motion No. 27-2012/13, Document No. 81-2012/13 

 
  Trustees Garibay and Velarde-Garcia advised they must recuse themselves due to a  
  conflict of interest. 
 

13



MINUTE RECORD of Madera Unified School District Board of Education 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING HELD ON THE 28TH DAY OF AUGUST 2012 

 7 

  President Arredondo opened the floor for public comment on this item. Seeing no one 
  come forward, President Arredondo closed the floor to public comment and returned 
  the item to the Board for questions and comments prior to calling for a motion. 

 
 It was moved by Clerk Salvador, seconded by Trustee Rodriguez, and carried by 
 majority to approve the commercial warrant listing. 

 
  Ayes:  Trustees Cogdill, Rodriguez, Seibert, Clerk Salvador    
    and President Arredondo  
  Noes:  None 
  Absent:  None 
  Abstained: None 
  Recused: Trustees Garibay and Velarde-Garcia 
 
10. Information and Reports 
  
 10A. Educational Services Report 

o Expulsion Review: Dr. Anthony Monreal 
 
 10B. Business and Operations Update 

o Purchasing Process: Teri Bradshaw and Rosalind Cox 
 

10C. Superintendent’s Time 
o Community Schools: Van Do-Reynoso, Madera County Public Health 

Department 
o Proposition 30: Superintendent Balderas 

 
11. Announcements 
 Trustee Garibay announced that he would be attending the Madera County School Board 
 Association Executive and General meetings tomorrow evening in Chowchilla. 
 
12. Miscellaneous 
 
 A.  Board Member Committee and Information Reports 

o Trustee Garibay announced that the Lions Club Eye and Hearing Screening 
Mobile would be visiting Madera schools from September 10th through 
September 21st. 

o Trustee Cogdill reported that the Kiwanis Club took middle and high school 
Key Club members to a musical performance at Roger Rocka’s in Fresno. 

o President Arredondo advised that the Governor will be announcing his 
decision on the proposed Madera casino by the end of next week. 

 
13. Advanced Planning 
 
 President Arredondo made the following announcement: 
 Next Regular Board Meeting 
 Tuesday, September 11, 2012 at 7:00 p.m. 
 Madera Unified School District Boardroom – 1902 Howard Road, Madera, CA 93637 
 
 

14



MINUTE RECORD of Madera Unified School District Board of Education 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING HELD ON THE 28TH DAY OF AUGUST 2012 

 8 

14. Suggested Future Agenda Items 
o Clerk Salvador asked for a report on the state of technology in the school district 
o Trustee Rodriguez asked for a Friday Update report on partnering with the local food 

bank for leftover food donations. Trustee Rodriguez also requested an update on the 
Child Nutrition Committee.  

o Trustee Velarde-Garcia would like to know if teachers get a full 30 minute duty-free 
lunch. 

 
15. Adjournment – Motion No. 28–2012/13 
 
 President Arredondo adjourned the Public Session at 9:18 p.m. 
 
 
 
 ______________________________________________________  Dated: August 28, 2012 
  Janet Morgan, Senior Administrative Assistant 
   to the Superintendent and Board of Trustees 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

15



MINUTE RECORD of Madera Unified School District Board of Education 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING HELD ON THE 28TH DAY OF AUGUST 2012 

 9 

MINUTES OF AUGUST 28, 2012 
MOTION NO. 21 and 22-2012/13 and MOTION NO. 27-2012/13 

RESOLUTION NO. 08-2012/13 
DOCUMENT NOs. 69-2012/13 through 76-2012/13 

and DOCUMENT NO. 81-2012/13 
 

Recapitulation of Business Transactions and Warrants – Exhibit A NEW BUSINESS 
Staff Changes and Coaches – Exhibit B CONSENT AGENDA 

 
EXHIBIT A – NEW BUSINESS 

APPROVAL OF WARRANTS – MOTION NO. 27-2012/13 
DOCUMENT NO. 81-2012/13 

 

 
 

16



MINUTE RECORD of Madera Unified School District Board of Education 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING HELD ON THE 28TH DAY OF AUGUST 2012 

 10 

Items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and are acted on by the Board of Trustees 
in one motion.  There is no discussion of these items prior to the Board, staff, or the public request for specific 
items to be discussed and/or removed from the Consent Agenda.  Each item on the Consent Agenda approved 
by the Board of Trustees shall be deemed to have been considered in full and adopted as recommended. 

 
 

EXHIBIT B – CONSENT AGENDA 
CERTIFICATED HUMAN RESOURCES ITEMS 

MOTION NO. 22-2012/13 
DOCUMENT 75-2012/13 

 
HUMAN RESOURCES STAFFING LIST 
           BOARD AGENDA – AUGUST 28, 2012 

 
 
CERTIFICATED LEAVES OF ABSENCE 
        Effective 
Name   Assignment  Site  Date(s)  Justification  
None 
         
CERTIFICATED SEPARATIONS 
        Effective 
Name   Assignment  Site  Date(s)  Justification  
1.  Melissa Ybarra  Teacher   MSHS  06/02/12  Resignation 
 
CERTIFICATED NEW POSITION 
        Effective 
Name   Assignment  Site  Date(s)  Justification  
1.  One full-time position Coordinator of Special Svs. District  2012/2013 New Position (Special Ed.  
          Funding) 
      
CERTIFICATED EMPLOYMENT      
        Effective 
Name   Assignment  Site  Date(s)  Justification  
  1.  Kiley Hansen  Elem. PE Specialist  District  2012/2013 Replacement 
  2.  Charlene Torok TSA    Madison  2012/2013 Replacement (46% FTE) 
  3.  Michael Warffuel Teacher   Special Services 2012/2013 Replacement 
  4.  Emily Savala  TSA   Preschool  2012/2013 New Position (Preschool  
          Funding) 
  5.  Tina Najanian  TSA   Preschool  2012/2013 New Position (First Five  
          Funding 80% FTE/ 
          Preschool Funding 20% FTE) 
  6.  Elvira Bandy  TSA   Preschool  2012/2013 New Position (First Five  
          Funding 65% FTE/ 
           Preschool Funding 35% FTE)  
  7.  Rebecca McHaney Interim Coordinator Special Services 2012/2013 New Position (Special Ed.  
          Funding) 
  8.  Scott Ferguson  TSA   MSHS  2012/2013 Replacement 
  9.  Genine Meraz  Intervention Specialist MSHS  2012/2013 Replacement 
10.  Ismael Munoz  Vice Principal  Parkwood 2012/2013 Replacement 
           
CERTIFICATED OTHER 
        Effective 
Name   Assignment  Site  Date(s)  Justification  
None 
 

 
 
 
 

17



MINUTE RECORD of Madera Unified School District Board of Education 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING HELD ON THE 28TH DAY OF AUGUST 2012 

 11 

EXHIBIT B – CLASSIFIED HUMAN RESOURCES ITEMS 
MOTION NO. 22-2012/13 
DOCUMENT 75-2012/13 

CLASSIFIED LEAVES OF ABSENCE 
        Effective 
Name   Assignment  Site  Date(s)  Justification  
None 
    
CLASSIFIED SEPARATIONS 
        Effective 
Name   Assignment  Site  Date(s)  Justification  
1.  Andi Albertson  Bus Driver  Transportation 08/10/12  Resignation 
2.  Renee Marshall  Bus Driver  Transportation 06/08/12  Resignation 
3.  Janet Morgan  Senior Administrative Asst. District  12/29/12  Retirement (18 Yrs.) 
 
CLASSIFIED NEW POSITION 
        
   Effective 
Name Assignment Site Date(s) Hours Justification 
1.  Deleted Classroom Aide Preschool 2012/2013 3.00 New Position 
     (Preschool Funding) 
2.  One full-time position Paraprofessional Aide -Special Services 2012/2013 8.00 New Position  
 Assistant to Physically Impaired   (Special Ed. Funding) 
3.  One full-time position Transportation  Transportation 2012/2013 8.00 New Position 
 Router    (Transportation Funding) 
 
CLASSIFIED EMPLOYMENT 
   Effective 
Name Assignment Site  Date(s) Hours Justification  
  1.  Debra Lopez Library Media Tech I Nishimoto  2012/2013 6.00  Replacement 
  2.  Marisol Iniguez Mendez Accounting Tech V Business  2012/2013 8.00  Replacement 
  3.  Charena Mass Paraprofessional Aide Special Services 2012/2013 7.00  New Position 
            (Special Ed. Funding) 
  4.  Gloria Vanderlaan Paraprofessional Aide - Special Services 2012/2013 7.50  New Position 
 Assistant to Physically Impaired          (Special Ed. Funding)  
  5.  Maribel Gil Paraprofessional Aide - Special Services 2012/2013 7.00  New Position 
 Special Needs           (Special Ed. Funding) 
  6.  Peter Roque CN Assistant II Child Nutrition 2012/2013 8.00  Replacement 
  7.  Charlene Cane CN Assistant II Child Nutrition 2012/2013 8.00  Replacement 
  8.  Amber Hernandez CN Assistant I Child Nutrition 2012/2013 3.50  Replacement 
  9.  Angel Vargas Spanish Translator/ District  2012/2013 8.00  Replacement 
 Interpreter 
10.  Alyssa Arredondo Administrative Asst. II ROP  2012/2013 3.50  Replacement 
11.  Dolores Espinoza Paraprofessional Aide - Special Services 2012/2013 7.00  Replacement 
 Special Needs 
 
CLASSIFIED OTHER 
    Effective 
Name Assignment Site  Date(s)  Hours  Justification 
None 
 
COACHES 
None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

18



MINUTE RECORD of Madera Unified School District Board of Education 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING HELD ON THE 28TH DAY OF AUGUST 2012 

 12 

 
EXHIBIT C – FIELD TRIPS/EMPLOYEE CONFERENCE REQUESTS 

MOTION NO. 21-2012/13 
DOCUMENT NO. 76-2012/13 

 
9/08/12 

to 
9/09/12 

MHS Stanford Cross Country team to Cross 
Country Meet 
14 students—2 adults 

Reno, NV $160 Transportation 
 
$350 Lodging 

MHS Athletic 
 
Madera Cross 
Country 

District Vans 

9/14/12 
to 

9/15/12 

MSHS  Avinelis / 
Williams 

Madera FFA students to 
Chapter Officer Leadership 
Conference 
9 students—2 adults 

Springville, 
CA 

$120 Transportation 
 
$100 Lodging 

Ag. Dept. 
 
Madera FFA 

Ag. 
Department 

10/20/12 
to 

10/28/12 

MSHS Avinelis / 
Williams 

Madera FFA students to 
National FFA Best Informed 
Greenhand Contest 
17 students—4 adults 

Indianapolis, 
IN 

$8000 Transportation 
 
 
$4500 Lodging 

Madera FFA 
 
 
Madera FFA 

Rental 
Vehicle / 
Plane 

2/8/13  
to  

2/9/13 

MSHS Avinelis / 
Williams 

Madera FFA students to 
FFA Made for Excellence 
4 students—2 adults 

Visalia, CA $45 Transportation 
 
$400 Lodging 

Ag. Dept. 
 
Madera FFA 

Ag. Dept. 
Vehicles 

2/15/13 
to 

2/16/13 

MSHS Avinelis / 
Williams 

Madera FFA students to 
WFM Section Bowl a Thon 
40 students—6 adults 

Fresno, CA $750 Transportation 
 
$ 0  Lodging 

MSHS Perkins School Bus 

 

19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



AGENDA ITEM 
MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
           
 
Date:     September 11, 2012  
 
Subject:  Request Ratification of Memorandum of Understanding between  
   Madera County Superintendent of Schools (MCSOS) and Madera Unified 
   School District for services provided in support of the Educating  
   Homeless Children and Youth Grant  (EHCY) beginning July 1, 2012 thru 
   June 30, 2013. 
 
Responsible Staff:  Dr. Anthony A. Monreal, Deputy Superintendent 
   Deborah A. Wood, Associate Superintendent of Educational Services  
 
 
Agenda Placement:  Consent 
 
Background/ rationale:   

 
• Madera Unified School District will identify homeless students, determine their educational 

barriers and provide services as allowable and as needed according to the authorized 
activities for the grant.  

• Services will be reimbursed through the MCSOS EHCY Grant. 
 
 

Financial impact:  
• MUSD will be reimbursed from the EHCY funds.  Compensation will be made as 

allowable and requested until funds are depleted.    
•  

 
Superintendent’s recommendation: 

• The Superintendent recommends the Board approve Memorandum of 
Understanding with Madera County Superintendent of Schools (MCSOS) and Madera 
Unified School District for services provided in support of the Educating Homeless 
Children and Youth Grant  (EHCY). 

 
Supporting documents attached:  

• MOU.  

29



30



31



32



AGENDA ITEM 
MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
           
 
Date:     September 11, 2012  
 
Subject:  Request approval of Contract between Madera Unified School District 

 and Stanislaus County Office of Education to provide English as a 
 Second Language classes for two Migrant Head Start Centers.  

 
Responsible Staff: Dr. Anthony A. Monreal, Deputy Superintendent 
   David Raygoza, Principal/Madera Adult School 
    
Agenda Placement:  Consent 
 
Background/ rationale:   

• Request approval to enter into an agreement with Stanislaus County Office of 
Education to provide specialized community education/enrichment classes for adults 
participating in the Migrant Head Start education program.  Duration of contract:  
September 12 to November 18, 2012 

• Stanislaus County Office of Education is in need of providing short-term English as a 
Second Language (ESL) classes for migrant families participating in their Migrant 
Head Start program.  The two Migrant Head Start Centers where services will be 
performed are Mis Angelitos and Sierra Vista.  Services will be exclusively provided 
for families enrolled in the Migrant Head Start Program.   

• Madera Adult School has been providing specialized Community 
Education/Enrichment classes for Migrant Head Start families for the past two years.  
This partnership has been beneficial to both parties and allows us to build capacity for 
English Language acquisition for families participating in the Migrant program.  
 

Financial impact:  
• Generates income for Community Education.  Total amount of contract $6,713.06 

 
Superintendent’s recommendation: 

• The Superintendent recommends the Board approve the Contract with Stanislaus 
County Office of Education to provide English as a Second Language classes for two 
Migrant Head Start Centers. 

 
Supporting documents attached:  

• Contract. 

33



  

CONTRACT FOR SERVICES 
 
 

This AGREEMENT made this 11th day of September 2012, between: 
 
STANISLAUS COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION, CHILD/FAMILY      
SERVICES DIVISION having principal place of business at 1100 H Street, 
Modesto, CA 95354   
 
and 
 
CONTRACTOR:  MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT-MADERA 
ADULT SCHOOL having a principal place of business at 955 West Pecan 
Avenue, Madera, California, 93637 
 

ARTICLE 1.  TERM OF CONTRACT 
 

Section 1.01. This agreement will become effective on September 12, 2012, and 
will continue in effect through November 18, 2012 unless terminated in accordance with 
the provisions of this agreement. 
  

ARTICLE 2. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS   
 
Section 2.01.  It is the expressed intention of the parties that Contractor is an 

independent contractor and not an employee, agent, joint venture or partner of Stanislaus 
County Office of Education.  Nothing in this agreement shall be interpreted or construed 
as creating or establishing the relationship of employer and employee between Stanislaus 
County Office of Education and Contractor or any employee or agent of Contractor.  
Both parties acknowledge that Contractor is not an employee for state or federal tax 
purposes.  Contractor shall retain the right to perform services for others during the term 
of this agreement. 

 
 

ARTICLE 3.  SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED BY CONTRACTOR 
 

Madera Adult School shall provide specialized Community Education/Enrichment 
classes to suit the educational needs of the Stanislaus County Office of Education, 
Child/Family Services Division (CFS), Migrant Head Start parents within the city of 
Madera:  Community Education /Enrichment classes shall consist of the following:   
 
A total 98 classroom hours of instruction for two independent English as a Second 
Language (ESL) classes.  The Mis Angelitos Head Start Center will be held on Monday 
and Wednesday (5:30 to 8:30 pm) and the Sierra Vista Head Start Center will be held on 
Saturday (2:00 to 5:00 pm).  All students will be given a pre and post test.  In addition, all 
students will be required to complete a journal upon completion of each class.    

34



  

 
 Section 3.01.  Contractor agrees to provide Community Education/Enrichment 
classes to participants in the Migrant Head Start Program for a minimum of 10 
individuals per class.   Classes will be provided as follows:   
 
ESL Class # 1 -  Monday/Wednesday (Mis Angelitos – Migrant Head Start Center) 
   5:30pm to 7:00 pm Beginners 
   7:00pm to 8:30 pm Intermediate 
 
ESL Class # 2 -  Saturday (Sierra Vista Migrant Head Start Center) 
   2:00pm to 3:30 pm Beginners 
   3:30pm to 5:00 pm Intermediate 
 

 
Method of Performing Services 

 
Section 3.02.  Contractor will determine the method, details and means of 

performing the above described services.  
 

 
Employment of Assistants  

 
Section 3.03.  Contractor may, at the Contractor’s own expense, employ such 

assistants as Contractor deems necessary to perform the services required of Contractor 
by this agreement.  Stanislaus County Office of Education may not control, direct, or 
supervise Contractor’s assistants or employees in the performance of those services.  
Contractor assumes full and sole responsibility for the payment of all compensation and 
expenses of these assistants and for all state and federal income tax, unemployment 
insurance, Social Security, disability insurance, and other applicable withholdings. 

 
Place of Work 

 
Section 3.04.  Unless specified in Section 3.01, Contractor shall perform the 

services required by this agreement at any place or location and at such times as 
contractor shall determine. 

 
ARTICLE 4. COMPENSATION 

 
Section 4.01.  In consideration for the services to be performed by Contractor, 

Stanislaus County Office of Education agrees to pay Contractor:  A total contract amount 
not to exceed $6,713.06. 

Invoices 
 

 Section 4.02.  Contractor shall submit invoices for all services rendered within 30 
days upon completion of contract. 

 

35



  

Method of Payment of Compensation 
 
Section 4.03.  Upon receipt of invoice at conclusion of services, Stanislaus 

County Office of Education shall pay the invoice within 30 days. 
 

Expenses   
 
Section 4.04.  Contractor shall be responsible for all costs and expenses incident 

to the performance of services for Stanislaus County Office of Education, including but 
not limited to, all costs of equipment provided by contractor, all fees, fines, licenses, 
bonds, or taxes required of or imposed against Contractor and all other of Contractor’s 
costs of doing business.  Stanislaus County Office of Education shall be responsible for 
no expenses incurred by Contractor in performing services for Stanislaus County Office 
of Education. 

 
 

ARTICLE 5.  OBLIGATIONS OF CONTRACTOR 
 

Assignment 
 
Section 5.01.  Neither this agreement nor any duties or obligations under this 

agreement may be assigned by Contractor without the prior written consent of Stanislaus 
County Office of Education. 

 
State and Federal Taxes 

 
Section 5.02.  As Contractor is not a Stanislaus County Office of Education 

employee, Contractor is responsible for paying all required state and federal taxes.   
 

• Will not withhold FICA (Social Security) from Contractor’s payments; 
• Will not make state or federal unemployment insurance contributions on 

behalf of Contractor; 
• Will not withhold state or federal income tax from payment to Contractor; 
• Will not make disability insurance contributions on behalf of Contractor; 
• Will not obtain workers’ compensation insurance on behalf of Contractor. 

 
ARTICLE 6.  REVISION OR TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 

 
 

 Section 6.01.  Should either Stanislaus County Office of Education or Contractor 
wish to revise or terminate this agreement, party may revise or terminate this agreement 
upon the giving of seven days written notice to the other party 

 
 

    
 

36



  

ARTICLE 7.  GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

Entire Agreement of the Parties 
 

Section 7.01.  This agreement supersedes any and all agreements, either oral or 
written, between the parties, hereto with respect to the rendering of services by 
Contractor for Stanislaus County Office of Education and contains all the covenants and 
agreements between the parties with respect to the rendering of such services in any 
manner whatsoever.  Each party to this agreement acknowledges that no representations, 
inducements or agreements, orally or otherwise, have been made by any party or anyone 
acting on behalf of any party, which is not embodied herein, and that no other agreement, 
statement or promise not contained in this agreement shall be valid or binding.  Any 
modification of this agreement will be effective only if it is in writing signed by the party 
to be charged. 
 

Partial Invalidity 
 

Section 7.02.  If any provision in this agreement is held by a court of competent 
jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining provisions will 
nevertheless continue in full force without being impaired or invalidated in any way. 
 

Attorney’s Fees 
 

Section 7.03.  If any action at law or in equity, including an action for declaratory 
relief, is brought to enforce or interpret the provisions of this agreement, the prevailing 
party will be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees, which may be set by the court in the 
same action or in a separate action brought for that purpose, in addition to any other relief 
to which that party may be entitled. 
 

Governing Law 
 

Section 7.04.  This agreement will be governed by and construed in accordance 
with the laws of the State of California. 
 
Executed at Madera, California, on the date and year first above written. 
 
CONTRACTOR: 
Madera Unified School District  Stanislaus County Office of Education 
Madera Adult School              Stanislaus County 
 
 
 
BY:__________________________         BY:____________________________ 

Dr. Anthony A. Monreal   Donald Gatti 
Deputy Superintendent   Assistant Superintendent 
        

37



AGENDA ITEM 
MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
           
 
Date:     September 11, 2012  
 
Subject:  Request Approval of We Give Books/Pearson Foundation Read for the  
   Record Book Grant Agreement between Madera Unified and Pearson  
   Foundation 
 
Responsible Staff: Dr. Anthony A. Monreal, Deputy Superintendent 
   Deborah A. Wood, Associate Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
Agenda Placement:  Consent 
 
Background/ rationale:   

• Madera Unified will join the Pearson Foundation again this year to celebrate the 
Jumpstart’s Read for the Record, on Thursday, October 4th, 2012. 

• Pearson Foundation will provide a book grant to Madera Unified so that Preschool 
and Kindergarten teachers participate in the campaign with their students to break a 
new world record for largest shared reading experience of the same book on the same 
day by adults and children.  

• Madera Unified will receive 105 copies of Jumpstart’s 2012 Read for the Record the 
special edition campaign, Lady Bug Girl and the Bug Squad by Jack Davis and David 
Soman. 

 
 

Financial impact:  
• Book grant value is $943.95. 

 
Superintendent’s recommendation: 
• The Superintendent recommends the Board approve the We Give Books/Pearson 

Foundation Read for the Record Book Grant Agreement. 
 
Supporting documents attached:  

• Grant Agreement.  

38



 

 

 

We Give Books/Pearson Foundation Read for the Record Book Grant Agreement 
 
 
Name:     Ms. Deborah A. Wood 
Title:     Associate Superintendent of Educational Services 
School District:   Madera Unified School District 
Address:    1902 Howard Road, Madera, CA, 93637 
 
District EIN (Employer Identification Number):  35-2247260 
 
Madera USD has agreed to accept a book grant in the amount of 105 copies of Jumpstart’s 
2012 Read for the Record the special edition campaign, Lady Bug Girl and the Bug Squad by 
Jacky Davis and David Soman.  This special campaign edition retails for $8.99, making the 
valuation of the book grant, $943.95. 
 
The books will be delivered to Madera USD at the end of August or beginning of September, 
2012.   
 
 
 
 
 
Signature:  ____________________________________________ 
  Ms. Deborah A. Wood,   
  Associate Superintendent of Educational Services 
  Madera Unified School District 
 
 
 
Please scan and email or fax the above signed documentation to: 
 
Ginny.Kirkland@pearsonfoundation.org 
Ginny Kirkland:  1-800-708-2390 

39

mailto:Ginny.Kirkland@pearsonfoundation.org


AGENDA ITEM 
MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
           
 
Date:     September 11, 2012  
 
Subject: Request approval of Consultant Services Agreement between Madera 

Unified School District and Houghton Mifflin Harcourt/ Riverside 
Publishing.  

 
 
Responsible Staff: Dr. Anthony A. Monreal, Deputy Superintendent 

Deborah A. Wood, Associate Superintendent of Educational Services  
    
 
Agenda Placement:  Consent 
 
Background/ rationale:   

• The Houghton Mifflin Harcourt/ Riverside Publishing trainer will provide training to our 
new special education teachers in the area of administering the Woodcock Johnson test 
of achievement, which is given to students referred for special education assessment, 
students requiring triennial assessment and for students transitioning into middle and 
high school. The consultant will also provide training on the WJIII Tests of Cognitive 
Abilities administered by our school psychologists.  

• The term of the contract is for one day of training on September 14, 2012. 
 
Financial impact:  

• Not to exceed $2700 funded through Medi-Cal Billing Option. 
 
Superintendent’s recommendation: 

• The Superintendent recommends that the Board approve the Consultant Services 
Agreement between the Madera Unified School District and Houghton Mifflin Harcourt/ 
Riverside Publishing. 

 
Supporting documents attached:  

• MUSD Consultant Services Agreement 
 

40



 
 MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 CONSULTANT SERVICES AGREEMENT 
  
 
This agreement is made and entered into this day September 11, 2012 by and between Madera Unified School 
District (“District”) and Houghton Mifflin Harcourt/ Riverside Publishing. (“Consultant”). 
 

1. Consultant agrees to provide the following specified services: will provide training to our new special 
education teachers in the area of administering the Woodcock Johnson test of achievement, which is 
given to students referred for special education assessment, students requiring triennial assessment and 
for students transitioning into middle and high school. The consultant will also provide training on the 
WJIII Tests of Cognitive Abilities administered by our school psychologists.  

 
2. Term.  The Consultant’s services described in Paragraph 1 shall commence on (September 14, 2012)      
 and shall end on (September 14, 2012) unless earlier terminated pursuant to Paragraph 8. 
  
2. Payment.  District agrees to pay Consultant as follows: The rates of the contract are as follows:  
  
 Total payment shall not exceed $2700.00 
  
4. Payroll Forms.  Consultant agrees to complete the District’s consultant payroll form.  Consultant agrees 

that failure to properly complete this form in a timely manner may result in nonpayment to consultant. 
 
5. Independent Contractor Status.  Consultant and any and all agents and employees of Consultant are 

agreed to be independent contractors in their performance under this Agreement and are not officers, 
employees, or agents of the District.  Consultant shall retain the right to perform services for others 
during the term of this Agreement. 

 
6. Indemnity.  Consultant shall indemnify, defend, and save and hold harmless the District, its Board of 

Trustees, officers, agents, and employees from any and all claims, damages, losses, causes of actions, and 
demands, including reasonable attorney’s fees and costs, incurred in connection with the processing or 
defense of any matter, claim, lawsuit or contest arising out of Consultant’s performance of or failure to 
perform the work required by this Agreement. 

 
7. Insurance.   Consultant agrees to purchase and maintain throughout the term of this Agreement a 

comprehensive general liability insurance policy to protect Consultant from damages because of bodily 
injury, including death, and from claims for damages to property which may arise out of or result from 
Consultant’s responsibilities under this Agreement, whether such acts or omissions be by Consultant or 
anyone directly or indirectly employed by Consultant.  This insurance shall name the District as 
additional insured and shall be written for not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence 
and One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) for property damage.  A certificate of insurance shall be filed with 
the District and shall provide that no changes shall be made to such insurance without thirty (30) days 
prior written notice to the District. 

 
8. Termination of Agreement.  District may terminate this Agreement for any reason upon written notice to 

Consultant.  In the event of early termination, Consultant shall be paid for satisfactory work performed to 
the date of termination.  The District may then proceed with the work in any manner the district deems 
proper. 

 
9. No Entitlement.  Consultant agrees that it has no entitlement to any future contracts or work from District 

or to any employment or fringe benefits from the District. 
 
10. Taxes.  Payment to Consultant pursuant to this Agreement will be reported to federal and state taxing 

authorities as required on the IRS Form 1099.  District will not withhold any money from compensation 
payable to Consultant.  In particular, District will not withhold FICA (social security); state or federal 
unemployment insurance contributions; and/or state or federal income tax or disability insurance.  
Consultant is independently responsible for the payment of all applicable taxes. 

 
11. Governing Law and Venue.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed only in accordance with 

the laws of the State of California.  If any action is initiated involving the application or interpretation of 

41



this Agreement, venue shall only lie in the appropriate state court in Madera County or federal court in 
Fresno County, California. 

 
12. Binding Effect.  This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the Consultant, 

the District and their respective successors and assignees. 
 
13. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable by a Court of 

competent jurisdiction, such holdings shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any other provision of 
this Agreement. 

 
14. Amendment.  The terms of this Agreement shall not be amended in any manner whatsoever except by 

written agreements signed by the parties. 
 
15. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties.  There are no 

oral understandings, side agreements, representation or warranties, expressed or implied, not specified in 
this Agreement. 

 
16. Licenses.  Consultant represents that Consultant and all agents and employees of Consultant are licensed 

by the state of California to perform all the services required by this Agreement.  Consultant will 
maintain all licenses in full force and effect during the term of this Agreement. 

 
17. Compliance with Law.  Consultant agrees to perform the services contemplated by this Agreement in a 

professional and a competent manner and in compliance with all local, state and federal laws, and 
regulations governing the service to be rendered pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
18. Board Approval.  The parties agree that the effectiveness of the Agreement is contingent upon approval 

by the District’s Board of Trustees. 
 
19. Equipment and Materials.  Consultant shall provide all equipment, materials, and supplies necessary for 

the performance of this Agreement.  This provision may be negotiable as to the needs of specific 
children. 

 
20. Non-discrimination.  Consultant shall not engage in unlawful discrimination in the employment of 

persons because of race, color national origin, age, ancestry, religion, sex, marital status, medical 
condition, physical handicap, or other bias prohibited by state or federal law. 

 
21. In accordance with Education Code Section 39656, this contract is not valid or an enforceable obligation 

against the District until approved or ratified by motion of the Governing Board duly passed and adopted. 
 

 
Madera Unified School District  Consultant:   

  
by:  Deborah Wood  by: Baina Goliszewski   
     Associate Superintendent        VP of Financed   
 
_________________________________  __________________________________ 
(Signature)  (Signature)    
 
Date: ____________________________  Date: _____________________________ 
 
   Federal ID #04-2670173 
    

 

42



AGENDA ITEM 
MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
           
 
Date:     September 11, 2012  
 
 
Subject: Request approval of the Memorandum of Understanding for the 

Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Education (SNAP-Ed) 
between Madera County Public Health Department (MCPHD) and 
Madera Unified School District (MUSD) 

 
 
Responsible Staff:  Dr. Anthony A. Monreal, Deputy Superintendent 
    Deborah A. Wood, Associate Superintendent of Educational Services  
 
 
Agenda Placement:  Consent 
 
 
Background/ rationale:   

• Grant funds have been awarded to MCPHD to implement nutrition education for students 
at school sites with a percentage of free/reduced meals 50% or above.  Under SNAP-Ed the 
MCPHD will be targeting fourth grade students at the following schools: Alpha, Berenda, 
Chavez, Dixieland, Howard, Madison, Monroe, John Adams, La Vina, Lincoln, Millview, 
Nishimoto, Parkwood, Pershing, Sierra Vista, and Washington. 
 
The nutrition education will be based on the Harvest of the Month (HOTM) program.  All 
activities are compatible with California State Standards.. 

 
 

Financial impact:  
• none 

 
 
Superintendent’s recommendation: 

• The Superintendent recommends the Board approve the Memorandum of 
Understanding for the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Education (SNAP-
Ed) between Madera County Public Health Department (MCPHD) and Madera Unified 
School District (MUSD) 
 

 
Supporting documents attached:  

• Memorandum of Understanding between Madera County Public Health Department 
and Madera Unified School District. 

• Harvest of the Month links to California Content Standards grades 3-5. 

43



Memorandum of Understanding 
For The  

Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Education (SNAP-Ed) 
Between 

Madera County Public Health Department 
AND 

Madera Unified School District 
 
The USDA-funded Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Education (SNAP-Ed) is an 
initiative of the California Department of Public Health (CDPH). Funding under SNAP-Ed is for 
program planning related to community nutrition education and improving food security, and to 
carry out a set of nutrition education activities that serve the eligible low income population in 
the county.  Requirements of the SNAP-Ed program include collaboration between the local 
health and social services departments to coordinate efforts in implementing nutrition education 
interventions, and the development of a County Nutrition Action Plan for Madera County. 
 
Under SNAP-Ed, the Madera County Public Health Department has been awarded grant funds to 
implement the program objectives in Madera County, which include nutrition education for 
students at school sites with a percentage of free/reduced meals 50% or above.  Under the 
SNAP-Ed program, the Madera County Public Health Department will be targeting fourth grade 
students within the Madera Unified School District for nutrition education.  To facilitate 
cooperation and collaboration between the Madera County Public Health Department and the 
Madera Unified School District, this Memorandum of Understanding defines the activities 
required of each agency. 
 
Nutrition Education will be based on the Harvest of the Month (HOTM) program.  HOTM 
teaches students about 1 specific piece of produce per month. Students also have the opportunity 
to try the produce through food demonstrations that Madera County Public Health Department 
Health Educators will be conducting.  The food demonstration uses the produce in a quick and 
easy healthy snack that students are usually able to make themselves.  All activities are 
compatible with California State Standards.   
 
Purpose 
 
This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is made between the Madera County Public Health 
Department and the Madera Unified School District to facilitate cooperation and collaboration 
between these agencies so that an optimal number of youth can receive nutrition education under 
the SNAP-Ed program.  
 
Activity Coordination 
 
The following activities, by agency, are proposed under this Memorandum of Understanding. 
 
Madera Unified School District: 
 

44



• Madera Unified School District staff will coordinate with Madera County Public 
Health Department staff to identify and facilitate opportunities for nutrition education 
presentations.  

o Activities will take place at the following school sites: 
o Alpha Elementary School 
o Berenda Elementary School 
o Cesar Chavez Elementary School  
o Dixieland Elementary School 
o Howard Elementary School 
o James Madison Elementary School 
o James Monroe Elementary School 
o John Adams Elementary School 
o La Vina Elementary School 
o Lincoln Elementary School 
o Millview Elementary School 
o Nishimoto Elementary School 
o Parkwood Elementary School 
o Pershing Elementary School 
o Sierra Vista Elementary School 
o Washington Elementary School 

 
Madera County Public Health Department: 

 
• At participating school sites, Madera County Public Health Department staff will 

conduct monthly nutrition education presentations, each lasting between 25 and 40 
minutes.  Monthly presentations will be offered over the period October 2012 through 
May 2013. 

 
• Madera County Public Health Department staff will provide all supplies for the 

monthly presentations.  
 
• Monthly nutrition education presentations will be based on the Harvest of the Month 

(HOTM) program, with monthly themes as shown below: 
 

o HOTM Calendar 2012-2013 
 October:  Winter Squash 
 November:  Persimmons 
 January: Citrus 
 February: Dried Beans 
 March: Peas 
 April: Cucumber 
 May: Strawberries 

 
 
 
 

45



Term of the Agreement 
 
This Memorandum of Understanding made between the Madera County Public Health 
Department and the Madera Unified School District is for a period of one year, effective from 
the date of approval by Madera Unified School District, and may be extended by the written 
approval of both agencies. 
 
 
 
____________________________________________________    __________________ 
Van Do-Reynoso       Date 
Madera County Public Health Department Director 
 
 
 
____________________________________________________    __________________ 
Debie Wood        Date 
Associate Superintendent/Educational Services        
Madera Unified School District 
 

46



California Department of Public Health 
Network for a Healthy California 

 
 
 

Harvest of the Month Tool Kit (September 2005) – Supporting links to California Content Standards and Desired Results may vary monthly.   Page 1 of 2 
 

 

Links to California Content Standards 
 

Grade 3 - 5 
 

    

Educator Newsletter Activity 
Health 
Framework for 
California 

Physical 
Education  Science  English Language Arts  Mathematics  History-Social 

Science 

Taste Testing 
Cooking in the Classroom 

Expectation 1  Grade 3: 
Investigation & 
Experimentation:  5.e 
Grade 4: 
Investigation & 
Experimentation:  6.e  
 

Grade 3: 
Reading 1.0, 2.0, 2.7 
Writing 2.2 
Listening and Speaking 2.0, 2.1, 2.3 
 

Grade 3: 
Number Sense 3.0 
Grade 4: 
Statistics, Data Analysis and 
Probability 1.0 
Grade 5: 
Mathematical Reasoning 2.0 

 

Eat your Colors 
Reasons to Eat… 
Nutrition Facts Label 

Expectation 1 
Expectation 8 

 Grade 3: 
Physical Sciences: 1.b 
 

   

Growing/Agricultural Facts    Grade 3: 
Life Sciences: 3.a 
Grade 4: 
Life Sciences: 3.b, 3.c  
 

 Grade 3: 
Measurement 1.0, 1.1, 1.2 

Grade 3: 
3.1, 3.5 
 

Home Grown Facts      Grade 3:  
3.5, 3.51  
Grade 4: 
4.2, 4.4 
 

Historical Timeline      Grade 3: 
3.1, 3.12, 3.3 
Grade 4: 
4.2, 4.4 

Student Sleuths Expectation 1 
Expectation 4 
Expectation 5 
Expectation 8 
 

 Grade 3: 
Investigation & 
Experimentation: 5.b, 
5.e 
Grade 4: 
Life Sciences: 2.a 
  

Grade 3: 
Reading 1.0, 2.0, 2.3, 2.6 
Writing 2.0 
Grade 4: 
Reading 2.2, 2.7 
Writing 1.5, 1.6 
Grade 5: 
Writing 1.0, 1.3, 2.3 
 

Grade 4: 
Measurement/Geometry 3.4 

Grade 3: 
3.1, 3.5 
 

Physical Activity Corner  Standard 1 
and 4 

    

47



California Department of Public Health 
Network for a Healthy California 

 
 
 

Harvest of the Month Tool Kit (September 2005) – Supporting links to California Content Standards and Desired Results may vary monthly.   Page 2 of 2 
 

 

Links to California Content Standards 
 

Grade 3 - 5 
 

Educator Newsletter Activity 
Health 
Framework for 
California 

Physical 
Education  Science  English Language Arts  Mathematics  History-Social 

Science 

School Garden   Grade 3: 
Life Sciences: 3.a 
Grade 4: 
Life Sciences: 2.a, 2.c 
Grade 5: 
Life Science 2.0, 2.a 
 

   

Cafeteria Connections Expectation 1 
Expectation 4 

 Grade 3: 
Physical Sciences: 1.b 
 

Grade 3: 
Writing 2.0, 2.2, 2.3 
 

  

Student Advocates Expectation 1 
Expectation 4 
Expectation 5 
Expectation 8 

  Grade 3: 
Speaking 2.1, 2.3 
Grade 4: 
Reading 2.6 
Writing 2.0, 2.1 
Written & Oral 1.0 
Listening & Speaking 1.1  
Speaking 2.0, 2.1, 2.2 

 Grade 3:  
3.54 

Adventurous Activities Expectation 1   Grade 3: 
Writing 2.0, 2.2 
Grade 4: 
Writing: 2.0, 2.1a-d 
Written & Oral 1.0 
Grade 5: 
Speaking 2.0, 2.1, 2.2 

Grade 3: 
Algebra Function 1.2, 2.1  
 

 

Literature Connections    Grade 3: 
Reading 1.0, 1.5, 1.6, 2.0 
Grade 4: 
Reading 2.0, 2.2, 2.6 
Grade 5: 
Reading 1.0 

  

 

48



AGENDA ITEM 
MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
           
 
Date:     September 11, 2012  
 
Subject:  Request Approval of Amendment 1 of 2012-13 Child Development  
   Contract CSPP-2270 between Madera Unified School District and  
   California Department of Education. 
 
Responsible Staff: Dr. Anthony A. Monreal, Deputy Superintendent 
   Deborah A. Wood, Associate Superintendent of Educational Services  
    
Agenda Placement:  Consent 
 
Background/ rationale:   

• Approval of this Amended contract with California Department of Education will 
continue funding for Madera Unified School District’s Preschool Program.  

• Attachment A of Amendment 1 includes 2012-13 language changes to the Funding 
Terms and Conditions (FT&C) to the existing contract. 

• Maximum reimbursable amount is reduced from $1,429,304.00 to $1,423,867.00.  
 

Financial impact:  
• Reduction of $5,437.00 

 
Superintendent’s recommendation: 

• The Superintendent recommends the Board approve Amendment 1 of the 2012-13 
Child Development Contract CSPP-2270 with the California Department of Education. 
 

Supporting documents attached:  
• Amendment 1. 

49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



AGENDA ITEM 
MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
           
 
 
Date: September 11, 2012     
 
Subject:   Request Approval of Memorandums of Understanding between 
Madera Unified School District and Bass Lake Joint Union Elementary School District, 
Chawanakee Unified School District, Chowchilla Elementary School District, Chowchilla 
Union High School District, Golden Valley Unified School District, Madera County Office 
of Education, Ezequiel Tafoya Alvarado Academy, and Sherman Thomas Charter School. 
 
Responsible Staff: Dr. Anthony A. Monreal, Deputy Superintendent 
 
 Tracie Green, Director of Human Resources and Labor Relations 
 
 Steve Thornton, Educational Specialist for Teacher Support 
 Programs/BTSA 
 
Agenda Placement:    Consent 
 
Background/ rationale:  Madera Unified School District is the Lead Educational Agency 
(LEA) for all K-12 school districts in Madera County.  As the Lead Educational Agency our 
purpose is to provide an Induction program for teachers new to the profession and who need 
to earn a clear Multiple Subject or Single Subject teaching credential.  This year the number 
of MUSD participants is 61 and the number of other district participants is 28.  
 
Financial impact:  Madera Unified School District as the LEA agrees to cover the substitution 
costs for Participating Teachers and Support Providers when conducting observations. The 
total cost will not exceed $12,800.  
 

Superintendent’s recommendation:  The Superintendent recommends approval of the 
Memorandum’s of Understanding. 
 
Supporting documents attached:  
Memorandum of Understanding Sample 
 
 

68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



 
 
 
HUMAN RESOURCES STAFFING LIST 
           BOARD AGENDA – SEPTEMBER 11, 2012 

 
CERTIFICATED LEAVES OF ABSENCE 
        Effective 
Name   Assignment  Site  Date(s)  Justification  
None 
         
CERTIFICATED SEPARATIONS 
        Effective 
Name   Assignment  Site  Date(s)  Justification  
None 
 
CERTIFICATED NEW POSITION 
        Effective 
Name   Assignment  Site  Date(s)  Justification  
None 
      
CERTIFICATED EMPLOYMENT      
        Effective 
Name   Assignment  Site  Date(s)  Justification  
1.  Shirley Gregory  Teacher   Adult Education 2012/2013 Replacement 
2.  Ana Apodaca  Coordinator of Categorical District  2012/2013 New Position 
   Programs 
 
CERTIFICATED OTHER 
        Effective 
Name   Assignment  Site  Date(s)  Justification  
None 
 
CLASSIFIED LEAVES OF ABSENCE 
        Effective 
Name   Assignment  Site  Date(s)  Justification  
None 
    
CLASSIFIED SEPARATIONS 
        Effective 
Name   Assignment  Site  Date(s)  Justification  
1.  Cheryl Reyes  Relief Bus Driver  Transportation 09/09/12  Resignation 
2.  Cindy Schmidt  Paraprofessional Aide Special Services 08/27/12  Resignation 
   Assistant to the Physically Impaired 
 
CLASSIFIED NEW POSITION 
        Effective 
Name   Assignment  Site  Date(s)  Hours  Justification 
None 
 
CLASSIFIED EMPLOYMENT 
        Effective 
Name   Assignment  Site  Date(s)  Hours  Justification  
1.  Sylvia Rincon  Health Assistant  Health Services 2012/2013 3.50  Replacement 
2.  Kasey Rodriguez Brown Health Assistant  Health Services 2012/2013 3.50  Replacement 
3.  Kathleen Lechuga Health Assistant  Health Services 2012/2013 3.50  Replacement 
4.  David Weber  Paraprofessional Aide - Special Services 2012/2013 7.00  Replacement 
   Special Needs 
5.  Alcira Viana-Pipes Paraprofessional Aide - Special Services 2012/2013 3.50  Replacement 
   Special Needs 
6.  Maria Wishart  Paraprofessional Aide - Special Services 2012/2013 3.50  Replacement 
7.  Luis Ayala  Groundsperson II  M&O  2012/2013 8.00  Replacement 
  
CLASSIFIED OTHER 
        Effective 
Name   Assignment  Site  Date(s)  Hours  Justification 
None 
 
COACHES 
1.  See Attached List 

80



Coaches List 
Board Agenda 

September 11, 2012 

 
Last Name First Name Site Sport Year 
Madrigal Benny Desmond Cross Country  2012/2013 
Prandini Julie Desmond Cross Country 2012/2013 
Stairs Wayman Desmond Football 2012/2013 
Gage Brad Desmond Football 2012/2013 
Bishop  Jode Desmond Football 2012/2013 
Amyx Dave Desmond Football 2012/2013 
Guglielmana Steve Desmond Golf 2012/2013 
Wood  Megan Desmond Volleyball 2012/2013 
Fuentes Melissa Desmond Volleyball 2012/2013 
Orosco James MSHS Tennis 2012/2013 
Orosco Jerry  MSHS Tennis 2012/2013  
Britton Tammi MSHS Gymnastics 2012/2013 
Spraggins Coleen MSHS Gymnastics 2012/2013 
Britton Tammi MSHS Cheer/Dance 2012/2013  
Sanchez Mariah  MSHS Cheer/Dance 2012/2013 
Levine Shandell MSHS Cheer/Dance 2012/2013 
Evans Taylor MSHS Cheer/Dance 2012/2013 
Newlon Sarah MSHS Cheer/Dance 2012/2013 
Ayala Helidoro MSHS Girls Volleyball 2012/2013 
Orro Marcos MSHS Girls Volleyball 2012/2013 
Alcala Hugo MSHS Girls Volleyball  2012/2013 
Ross Chris MSHS Water Polo 2012/2013 
Garcia Jose MSHS Water Polo 2012/2013 
Parris Rich MSHS Cross Country 2012/2013 
Valmonte Kelly MSHS Cross Country 2012/2013 
Valerde Ernest MSHS Cross Country 2012/2013 
Quintana Eloy MSHS Cross Country 2012/2013 
Lennemann Mike MSHS Cross Country 2012/2013  
Donegan Scott MSHS Football 2012/2013 
Hardcastle Geoff MSHS Football 2012/2013 
Maldonado Chris MSHS Football 2012/2013 
Aranico Arnido MSHS Football 2012/2013 
Brown Wayne MSHS Football 2012/2013 
Hogue Tom MSHS Football 2012/2013 
Contreras Steve MSHS Football 2012/2013 
Riddle Brian MSHS Football 2012/2013 
Fierros Alex MLK Cross Country 2012/2013 
Cisneros Berta MLK Cross Country 2012/2013 
Nona Anthony MLK Football 2012/2013 
Martinez Alberto MLK Football 2012/2013 
Carlson Sean MLK Football 2012/2013 
Smith Allen MLK Football 2012/2013 
Avila Mike MLK Football 2012/2013 

81



Coaches List 
Board Agenda 

September 11, 2012 
 

Last Name First Name Site Sport Year 
Miller James MLK Football 2012/2013 
Martinez Jesus MLK Football 2012/2013 
Shoals LaToya MLK Girls Volleyball 2012/2013 
Ayala Heliodoro MLK Girls Volleyball 2012/2013 
Mortier Jacob MLK Golf 2012/2013 
Smith Alexander MLK Tennis 2012/2013 
Ayers Clifford MLK Tennis 2012/2013 
Galleano Laura MLK Cheer 2012/2013 
Cappelluti Sarah MSHS Water Polo 2012/2013 
Gaeth-Pearce Jason MSHS Water Polo 2012-2013 
Stetsko Chris MSHS Football 2012-2013 
 

82



Madera Unified School District 
Board of Trustees Meeting 

Student Overnight or Out of State Field Trip Request 
September 11, 2012 

 
 

  Date        School         Name      Field Trip  –  # Students                 Location                 Cost                               Funding              Vehicle  
           Type 
 

8/31/2012 1 

9/15/12 
to 

9/16/12 

MSHS Parris Cross Country team to Asics-
Woodbridge Invitational 
44 students—5 adults 

Costa Mesa, 
CA 

$2581 Transportation 
 
$1240 Lodging 

Cross Country 
Boosters 
Cross Country 
Boosters 

Charter Bus 

   

83



AGENDA ITEM 
MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
                     
 
Date:       September 11, 2012     
 
Subject:    Request Adoption of a Resolution that approves the School Facility  
      Needs  Analysis authorizing the levying of alternative school facility fees 
      on residential development. 
 
Responsible Staff:  Rosalind Cox, Facilities Planning & Construction Mgmt./Purchasing 
 
Agenda Placement:  New Business 
 
Background/ rationale:   
 
Pursuant to Education Code Section 17620 and Government Code Sections 65995 et seq., the 
District is required to adopt a School Facilities Needs Analysis (SFNA) in order to levy fees on 
development  that  are  higher  than  the  statutory  fees  set  by  the  State  of  California.    It  is 
recommended  that  the Governing Board  review,  consider,  and  approve  the  School  Facility 
Needs Analysis.  The Board is asked to approve one of 2 various resolutions: 
 
1) Adopt Resolution No. 11‐2012/2013 establishing Level II fees in the amount of $6.04 per 

square foot and Level III fees in the amount of $12.08 per square foot;  
 
OR  

 
2)  Adopt  Resolution  No.  12‐2012/2013  holding  the  Level  II  and  Level  III  fees  flat  and 
continue to impose the current Level II fee amount ($5.97 per square foot) and Level III fee 
amount ($11.94 per square foot) without an increase. 
 
Prior to adopting the SFNA, the governing board must conduct a public hearing and respond 
to any comments it receives. 
 
Financial impact:  To be determined 
 
Superintendent’s recommendation: 
The Superintendent recommends adoption of either Resolution No. 11‐2012/13 or 
Resolution No. 12‐2012/13. 
 
Supporting documents attached:  
School Facility Needs Analysis and Resolution No. 11‐2012/13 and Resolution No. 12‐
2012/13.  

84



 

 

 
 
 
 
 

SCHOOL FACILITY NEEDS ANALYSIS AND 
 JUSTIFICATION STUDY 

 
for the 

 

MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

July 2012 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Prepared for 
Madera Unified School District 

1902 Howard Road 
Madera, CA  93637 

(559) 675-4500 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared  by 
School Facility Consultants 

 
 

 

85



 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

SCHOOL FACILITY NEEDS ANALYSIS AND 
 JUSTIFICATION STUDY  

 
for the 

 

MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

July 2012 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Prepared for 
Madera Unified School District 

1902 Howard Road 
Madera, CA  93637 

(559) 675-4500 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared  by 
School Facility Consultants 

1303 J Street, Suite 500 
Sacramento, CA 95814 

(916) 441-5063 
 
 

 

86



 

 

 

Table of Contents 
 
Executive Summary .........................................................................................................................1 
Introduction......................................................................................................................................2 
 
I. Authority to Collect Level II and Level III Fees ..........................................................................3 
 A. Eligibility for State Funding for New Construction..............................................................3 
 B. Adoption of School Facility Needs Analysis and Justification Study ..................................3 
 C. Criteria in Government Code Section 65995.5(b)(3)(A-D) ..................................................3 
 
II. Amount of Level II and Level III Fees .......................................................................................4 
 A. Allowable Cost for New School Facilities............................................................................4 
  (1) Number of Unhoused Students ......................................................................................4 
  (2) Allowable Grant Costs ...................................................................................................6 
  (3) Allowable Site Acquisition and Development Costs .....................................................7 
  (4) Local Funds Dedicated to School Facilities Necessitated by Future Development.......8 
  (5) Total Allowable School Facility Cost for Level II Fees ................................................9 
 B. Amount of Level II Fee.........................................................................................................9 
 C. Amount of Level III Fee......................................................................................................10 
 
III. Findings and Recommendations ..............................................................................................11 
 A. Findings...............................................................................................................................11 
  (1) Government Code Section 66001(a)(1) – Purpose of the Fee .....................................11 
  (2) Government Code Section 66001(a)(2) – Use of the Fee ............................................11 
  (3) Government Code Section 66001(a)(3) – Relationship Between Fee’s Use and the 
       Type of Project on Which the Fee is Imposed..............................................................11 
  (4) Government Code Section 66001(a)(4) – Relationship Between the Need for the 
       Public Facility and the Type of Project on Which the Fee is Imposed.........................12 
  (5) Government Code Section 66001(b) – Relationship Between the Fee and the Cost 

      of the Public Facility Attributable to the Development on Which the Fee is 
      Imposed.........................................................................................................................12 

  (6) Other Funding Sources.................................................................................................12 
   a) General Fund............................................................................................................12 
   b) State Programs.........................................................................................................12 
   c) General Obligation Bonds .......................................................................................12 
   d) Parcel Taxes.............................................................................................................13 
   e) Mello-Roos Community Facilities Districts ............................................................13 
   f) Surplus Property.......................................................................................................13 
   g) Alternatives for Reducing Facility Costs.................................................................13 
 B. Recommendations ...............................................................................................................13 
 
Appendix A.  Calculation of Allowable Per-Pupil Grant Costs  

Appendix B.  Calculation of Allowable Per-Pupil Site Acquisition Costs 
Appendix C.  Calculation of Allowable Per-Pupil Site Development Costs

87



Madera Unified School District – 2012 School Facility Needs Analysis and Justification Report 
 

 

Executive Summary 
 

The Madera Unified School District is authorized to collect $6.04 per square foot of residential 
development pursuant to Government Code Section 65995.5 and $12.08 per square foot of residential 
development pursuant to Government Code Section 65995.7 (also known as Level II and III fees, 
respectively). 
 
The District meets the eligibility requirements in Government Code Section 65995.5(b) regarding the 
collection of Level II and III fees.  The dollar amounts of the fees are based on the following facts and 
projections: 
 
1. The student generation rate of residential housing units projected to be built in the District, 

calculated in accordance with Government Code Section 65995.6(a), is 0.666 for single-family 
units and 0.666 for multi-family units. 

2. The number of new residential housing units projected to be built in the District over the next five 
years is 305 single-family and 100 multi-family units based on housing projection information 
provided to the District by the City of Madera and by the County of Madera. 

3. Multiplying the appropriate terms in (1) and (2) shows that future single- and multi-family 
residential development is projected to add 166 K-6 students, 38 7-8 students and 66 9-12 
students.   

4. Based on its 2011/12 enrollment, the District’s capacity as calculated on its SAB 50-02, Existing 
School Building Capacity form, and pupil capacity added by (1) Nishimoto Elementary (626 K-6 
seats), (2) Cesar Chavez Elementary (751 K-6 seats), (3) Pershing Elementary (751 K-6 seats), 
(4) Parkwood Elementary (726 K-6 seats), (5) a six classroom addition to Nishimoto Elementary 
(150 seats), (6) Desmond Middle School (904 7-8 seats), (7) Madera South High – Phase 2 & 3 
(783 9-12 seats), (8) Madera South High – Phase 4 (675 seats) and (9) a one classroom addition 
to Madera High (27 seats), the District has zero excess pupil capacity at the K-6, 7-8, and 9-12 
grade levels available for pupils generated by future residential development.  

5. The total number of unhoused pupils generated by future development equals 166 K-6 students, 
38 7-8 students and 66 9-12 students from future single- and multi-family residential 
development. 

6. The per-pupil allowable costs for the Level II fee equation equal $12,090.50, $13,364.50 and 
$15,729.50 for elementary, middle and high school students, respectively. These figures are equal 
to the per-pupil grant amounts in the State School Facility Program plus allowable per-pupil site 
development and site acquisition costs calculated pursuant to Government Code Sections 
65995.5(c) and 65995.6(h). 

7. Total allowable costs for the Level II fee equation equal $3,553,021 (K-6, 7-8 and 9-12 unhoused 
students generated by future development times the appropriate allowable per-pupil cost). 

8. The total amount of residential square footage projected to be built in the District over the next 
five years is 588,000 square feet based on an average square footage of 1,600 square feet for 
single-family units and 1,000 square feet for multi-family units projected to be built in the 
District.  

9. The District has no local funds available to dedicate to school facilities necessitated by future 
residential development.  

 
As shown in the body of this Report, the District meets the requirements of Government Code 
Section 66001 regarding the collection of developer fees (the nexus requirements).  
 

End of Summary 
 

88



Madera Unified School District – 2012 School Facility Needs Analysis and Justification Report 
 

2 

 

Introduction 

 
The purpose of this Report is to calculate the fee amount that the Madera Unified School 
District (District) is authorized to collect on residential development projects pursuant to 
Government Code Sections 65995.5 and 65995.7. School Facility Consultants has been 
retained by the District to conduct the analysis and prepare this Report. 
 
State law gives school districts the authority to charge fees on new residential developments 
if those developments generate additional students and cause a need for additional school 
facilities. All districts with a demonstrated need may collect fees pursuant to Education Code 
Section 17620 and Government Code Section 65995 (referred to as Level I fees).  Level I 
fees are currently capped at $3.20 per square foot of new residential development.  
Government Code Sections 65995.5 and 65995.7 authorize districts to collect fees (referred 
to as Level II and Level III fees) in excess of Level I fees, provided that the districts meet 
certain conditions.  Government Code Section 66001 requires that a reasonable relationship 
exist between the amount and use of developer fees and the developments on which they are 
to be charged. 
 
This Report is divided into three sections.  The first summarizes the specific requirements in 
State law regarding Level II and Level III fees and establishes the District’s authority to 
collect them.  The second calculates the dollar amounts of Level II and Level III fees that the 
District is authorized to collect.  The third explains how the District satisfies the requirements 
of Government Code Section 66001 with respect to Level II and III fees, summarizes other 
potential funding sources for school facilities and presents recommendations regarding the 
collection of developer fees. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

End of Section 
 

 

89



Madera Unified School District – 2012 School Facility Needs Analysis and Justification Report 
 

3 

 

I.  Authority to Collect Level II and Level III Fees 
 

State law establishes several requirements in order for school districts to collect Level II fees.  
Specifically, districts must: (1) apply to the State Allocation Board and be deemed eligible 
for State funding for new school construction, (2) adopt a school facility needs analysis and 
justification study and (3) satisfy at least two of the four criteria set forth in Government 
Code Section 65995.5(b)(3)(A-D).   
 

The general conditions required for collecting Level III fees are the same as those for Level 
II fees.  Before districts can collect Level III fees, however, the State Allocation Board must 
no longer be approving apportionments for new construction pursuant to Article 5 
(commencing with Section 17072.20) of Chapter 12.5 of Part 10 of the Education Code. 
 

The District satisfies the three conditions listed above in the following ways.  
 
A. Eligibility for State Funding for New Construction 
 

The District has been deemed eligible to receive State funding for construction of new 
school facilities as outlined in Government Code Section 65995.5(b)(1). The District’s 
most recent eligibility approval was at the June 27, 2012 meeting of the State Allocation 
Board. 

 

B.  Adoption of School Facility Needs Analysis and Justification Study  
 

This Report meets the requirements of Government Code Section 65995.6 for a School 
Facility Needs Analysis and Justification Study, that is, a study that shall “determine the 
need for new school facilities for unhoused pupils that are attributable to projected 
enrollment growth from the development of new residential units over the next five 
years.”  By adopting this study, the District will satisfy this requirement. 

 

C.  Criteria in Government Code Section 65995.5(b)(3)(A-D) 
 

The District meets the criterion outlined in 65995.5(b)(3)(C) in that it has issued debt 
equal to approximately 69.53 percent of its bonding capacity. The District also meets the 
criterion outlined in 65995.5(b)(3)(D); that is, that at least 20 percent of the District’s 
classrooms are relocatable. According to the District’s Office of Public School 
Construction SAB 50-02 Form, 34.8 percent (188 out of 540) of the total classrooms in 
the District are relocatable. In addition to the capacity reflected on the District’s SAB 50-
02 Form, six relocatable classrooms and 207 permanent classrooms have been added, at 
all grade levels, through the State School Facility Program. Including these projects in the 
District’s capacity indicates that 25.8 percent (194 out of 753) of the total classrooms in 
the District are relocatable.     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

End of Section 
 

90



Madera Unified School District – 2012 School Facility Needs Analysis and Justification Report 
 

4 

 

II.  Amount of Level II and Level III Fees 

 
State law outlines the method by which Level II fees are calculated.  The intent of the law is 
that the Level II fee represents half the cost, as defined in the State School Facility Program, 
of providing new school facilities. The methods defined in State law for calculating the Level 
II fee, however, underestimate the District’s true cost of providing school facilities. 
Additional sources of revenue are necessary to fully fund the facilities that are required as a 
result of new development and the generation of students from such development activity 
within the District.   
 
The Level II fee is calculated by (1) determining the allowable cost for new school facilities 
as outlined in the State School Facility Program, and (2) dividing that cost by the amount of 
new residential square footage projected to be built in the District over the next five years. 
 
A.  Allowable Cost for New School Facilities 
 

State law prescribes the following process for calculating the allowable cost for new 
school facilities: 
 

(1) determine the number of unhoused students attributable to future residential 
development; 

(2) multiply the number of unhoused students by the per-pupil grant costs of new 
elementary, middle, or high schools as outlined in Education Code Section 
17072.10;  

(3) determine the amount of site acquisition and development costs to be included 
as allowed by Government Code Section 65995.5(h); and 

(4) subtract the amount of local funds dedicated to school facilities necessitated 
by future residential development from the sum of (2) and (3). 

 
1) Number of Unhoused Students 

 
The number of unhoused students generated by future development equals the total 
number of students generated by future development minus the District’s existing 
excess pupil capacity.   
 
As required by Government Code Section 65995.6(a), this Report estimates the 
number of students generated by new development based on the historical student 
generation rates of residential units constructed during the previous five years. 
 
This Report estimates the number of students that will be generated by new single- 
and multi-family housing units by (1) counting the number of students in the District 
who live in housing units that paid developer fees between March 2006 and February 
2011, and (2) dividing that number by the total number of housing units that paid 
developer fees over the same time period. This Report uses historical developer fee 

91



Madera Unified School District – 2012 School Facility Needs Analysis and Justification Report 
 

5 

 

collection data from the Madera Unified School District to derive the housing counts 
and a May 2012 District-provided student list to derive the student counts.   
 
Addresses for units that paid developer fees from March 2011 to the present date are 
not used in the calculation because (1) student address files may not reflect residents’ 
address changes for approximately one year, (2) students who have moved from a 
nearby district may continue to attend their previous school until the end of the school 
year and (3) units listed may not have been completed and occupied by the time the 
student address list was compiled. 
 
It is noted that student generation rates are a calculation of students per residential 
unit at any one moment in time. Therefore, student generation rates are constantly 
changing based on increases and decreases in enrolled students and the number of 
residential units within the District at the time of calculation. As such, the District 
should be cautious in regard to using student generation rates for long-term planning 
and development and should adjust such planning and development based on updated 
student generation rates that are more in line with the current conditions at the time of 
evaluation. 
 
Table 1-1 summarizes the student generation rates for single- and multi-family units. 
 

Table 1-1 
Student Generation Rates 

 
Grade Group Single-Family Multi-Family 

K-6 0.393 0.458 
7-8 0.103 0.069 
9-12 0.170 0.139 
Total 0.666 0.666 

 
Information provided by the City of Madera and Madera County indicates that 305 
single-family units and 100 multi-family units will be built in the District within the 
next five years.  
 
Table 1-2 shows the total number of students projected to enter the District from 
housing units built over the next five years. 

 
Table 1-2 

Students Generated by Future Development 
 

 K-6 Students 7-8 Students 9-12 Students 
Single-Family 0.393 x 305= 120 0.103 x 305 = 31 0.170 x 305 = 52 
Multi-Family 0.458 x 100 = 46 0.069 x 100 = 7 0.139 x 100 = 14 

Total 166 38 66 
 

92



Madera Unified School District – 2012 School Facility Needs Analysis and Justification Report 
 

6 

 

In determining how many of the students in Table 1-2 are unhoused, the District must 
consider any existing excess capacity. State law requires districts to calculate their 
total pupil capacity according to the method described in Section 17071.10 of the 
Education Code. As stated on the District’s current Office of Public School 
Construction SAB 50-02 Form, the District’s pupil capacity, as calculated pursuant to 
Education Code Section 17071.10 is 6,425 in grades K-6, 1,917 in grades 7-8 and 
2,632 in grades 9-12. These capacities are inclusive of the Special Day Class capacity 
identified on the District’s Office of Public School Construction SAB 50-02 Form 
and reflect requirements and adjustments for Year Round Education operational 
grants in accordance with Education Code Section 42268 and State Relocatable 
Classrooms. In addition to the capacity reflected on the District’s SAB 50-02 Form, 
the District has added capacity through the State School Facility Program funding and 
construction of (1) Nishimoto Elementary (626 K-6 seats), (2) Cesar Chavez 
Elementary (751 K-6 seats), (3) Pershing Elementary (751 K-6 seats), (4) Parkwood 
Elementary (726 K-6 seats), (5) a six classroom addition to Nishimoto Elementary 
(150 seats), (6) Desmond Middle School (904 7-8 seats), (7) Madera South High – 
Phase 2 & 3 (783 9-12 seats), (8) Madera South High – Phase 4 (675 seats) and (9) a 
one classroom addition to Madera High (27 seats).   
 
As shown in Table 1-3, the District’s 2011/12 enrollment is greater than the capacities 
listed above for the K-6, 7-8 and 9-12 grade groups. The District, therefore, has no 
existing excess capacity available for students from new residential development in 
the K-6, 7-8 and 9-12 grade groups.  

 
Table 1-3 

Existing Capacity 
 

 
 
 

Grade 
Group 

 
 
 

Current 
Capacity 

 
 
 

2011/12 
Enrollment 

Existing Capacity 
Available for 
Students from 

Future 
Development 

 
Unhoused 
Students 

From Future 
Development 

K-6        9,500 11,608 0   166 
7-8        2,821   2,958 0    38 
9-12        4,135   5,370 0    66 
Total      16,456 19,936 0  270 
 

2) Allowable Grant Costs 
Table 1-4 shows the total allowable grant costs for new facilities.  The per-pupil grant 
costs are taken from Education Code Section 17072.10 and include adjustments as 
required by Education Code Section 17074.56(a) and Labor Code Section 1771.3 (see 
Appendix A for details regarding grant cost funding).   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

(continued on the next page) 

93



Madera Unified School District – 2012 School Facility Needs Analysis and Justification Report 
 

7 

 

 
Table 1-4 

Allowable Grant Costs for Pupils Generated from  
Future Residential Development 

 

 
Grade 
Group 

 
Per-Pupil Grant 

Cost 

Number of 
Unhoused 
Students 

 
Total Grant Cost 

K-6          $9,697.50  166       $1,609,785.00 
7-8        $10,523.00   38          $399,874.00 
9-12        $13,121.00   66          $865,986.00 
Total N/A 270       $2,875,645.00 

 
The per-pupil grant does not include the cost of school development items that the 
local community may deem important to meeting the quality of facilities in the 
District.  Because the per-pupil grants do not address certain costs, the actual funding 
will likely not be adequate to fund school facilities to the quality and level required 
by the District.  Therefore, the final calculation of Level II fees will likely understate 
the funding required by the District. 

 
3) Allowable Site Acquisition and Development Costs 

Table 1-5 shows the per-pupil site acquisition and development costs for elementary 
middle and high school students.   
 
Site acquisition costs for the District’s elementary, middle and high school cost 
models are based on (1) actual and estimated land acquisition costs provided by 
District administrators and (2) applicable increases pursuant to Section 1859.74 of 
Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations for appraisals, surveys, site testing, 
California Department of Education (CDE) review/approval, preparation of the 
POESA and PEA and the DTSC cost for review, approval, and oversight of the 
POESA and the PEA.  Site development costs for elementary, middle and high school 
cost models are consistent with the guidelines in Government Code Section 
65995.5(h). See Appendix B and Appendix C for detail on site acquisition and site 
development cost estimates.  
 

Table 1-5 
Calculation of Per-Pupil Site Acquisition and Development Costs 

 
 

Grade 
Group 

Per-Pupil Site 
Acquisition Costs 

Per-Pupil Site 
Development Costs 

Total Per-Pupil 
Acquisition and 

Development Costs 
K-6              $267 $4,519 $4,786 
7-8              $371 $5,312 $5,683 
9-12           $1,008 $4,209 $5,217 

 

94



Madera Unified School District – 2012 School Facility Needs Analysis and Justification Report 
 

8 

 

Pursuant to Government Code Sections 65995.5(c) and 65995.5(h), the allowable cost 
for site acquisition and development is calculated by (1) multiplying the per-pupil 
cost by one-half and (2) multiplying that result by the number of unhoused 
elementary, middle and high school students.  Table 1-6 shows the total allowable site 
acquisition and development costs. 

 
Table 1-6 

Allowable Site Acquisition and Development Costs 
 

 
Grade 
Group 

 
One-Half of Per-

Pupil Costs 

Number of 
Unhoused 
Students 

 
 

Allowable Cost 
K-6 $2,393.00 166 $397,238 
7-8 $2,841.50   38 $107,977 
9-12 $2,608.50   66 $172,161 
Total N/A 270 $677,376 

 
4) Local Funds Dedicated to School Facilities Necessitated by Future Development 

The District has no funds dedicated to school facilities necessitated by future 
development.  All District funds available for additional school facilities are required 
to provide facilities for existing unhoused students. 
 
In addition, the District has no surplus property that could be used for a school site or 
that is available for sale to finance school facilities. 
 
The District has two sources of funds available for new school facilities:  (1) 
approximately $4,460,478 in developer fee funds and (2) $20,108,607 in issued and 
authorized bond funds. As shown below, all of this $24,569,085 is required to provide 
facilities for currently unhoused pupils in the District. 
 
As outlined in Table 1-7, the District currently has 2,108 K-6, 137 7-8 and 1,235 9-12 
students that are unhoused.   
 

Table 1-7 
Existing Unhoused Pupils 

 
 

Grade 
Group 

 
Current 
Capacity 

 
2011/12 

 Enrollment 
Existing 

Unhoused Pupils 
K-6            9,500 11,608 2,108 
7-8            2,821   2,958    137 
9-12            4,135   5,370 1,235 
Total          16,456 19,936 3,480 

 

95



Madera Unified School District – 2012 School Facility Needs Analysis and Justification Report 
 

9 

 

Table 1-8 summarizes the cost of providing school facilities for these students.  Table 
1-8 uses per-pupil grant costs that are twice the allowable costs for the Level II fee 
(because the Level II fee is intended to only reflect one-half the cost of providing 
school facilities, as defined in the State School Facility Program). Per-pupil site 
acquisition and development costs are the same as those used to calculate the 
allowable cost for Level II fees (See Table 1-5). 

 
Table 1-8 

Cost of Providing School Facilities for Existing Unhoused Students  
 

 
Grade 
Group 

Existing 
Unhoused 

Pupils 
Per-Pupil 

Grant Costs 

Per-Pupil Site 
Acquisition and 

Development 
Costs 

 
 

Total Cost 
K-6 2,108 $19,395           $4,786 $50,973,548 
7-8    137 $21,046           $5,683   $3,661,873 
9-12 1,235 $26,242           $5,217 $38,851,865 
Total 3,480 N/A N/A $93,487,286 

 
Comparing the potential local funds available for new school facilities ($24,569,085) 
to the cost of providing school facilities for existing unhoused students ($93,487,286) 
demonstrates that all District funds available for facilities are required to provide 
facilities for existing unhoused students. 
 

5) Total Allowable School Facility Cost for Level II Fees 
Table 1-9 shows the total allowable cost for Level II fees for K-6, 7-8 and 9-12 
students from future residential development. 

 
Table 1-9 

Total Allowable Cost for Level II Fees  
 

Category Amount 
Grant $2,875,645 
Site Acquisition and Development                $677,376 
Less Local Funds N/A 
Total $3,553,021 

 
B.  Amount of Level II Fee 

 

The Level II fee is calculated by dividing the total allowable cost by the amount of new 
residential square footage projected to be built in the District over the next five years.  
 
As stated in Section II.A.1. above, over the next five years, 305 single-family units and 
100 multi-family units are projected to be built in the District. Information provided to 
the District by the City of Madera and Madera County planning departments, indicated 
that average square footages for single- and multi-family units over the next five years 

96



Madera Unified School District – 2012 School Facility Needs Analysis and Justification Report 
 

10 

 

would be 1,600 and 1,000 square feet, respectively. This Report estimates that new 
housing units in the District will have an average square footage of 1,600 and 1,000 for 
single- and multi-family units, respectively. Multiplying the average square footage by 
number of units projected produces a total of 588,000 square feet of new residential 
development to be built in the next five years. Dividing the total allowable school facility 
cost by the projected total new dwelling unit square footage results in a Level II fee of 
$6.04 per square foot of new residential development. 
 
The calculation of Level II fees, in accordance with the formulas provided in the statutes, 
will likely be understated when measured against the actual calculation of costs due to the 
limited inclusion of cost categories to determine actual costs per student and the 
fluctuating student generation rates. The District needs to account for these issues when 
conducting a revenue/cost analysis utilizing the calculated Level II fee.  
 

C.  Amount of Level III Fee 
 
Under certain circumstances, State law allows school districts to charge a fee higher than 
a Level II fee if: (1) the District meets the requirements for Level II fees and (2) the State 
Allocation Board is no longer approving apportionments for new construction pursuant to 
Article 5 (commencing with Section 17072.20) of Chapter 12.5 of Part 10 of the 
Education Code. In the District’s case, this higher fee, referred to as a Level III fee, can 
be no more than twice the Level II fee.  Therefore, the maximum Level III fee the District 
is authorized to charge is $12.08 per square foot of new residential development. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

End of Section 
 

97



Madera Unified School District – 2012 School Facility Needs Analysis and Justification Report 
 

11 

 

III.  Findings and Recommendations 
 
This Section (1) shows that the District meets the requirements of Government Code Section 
66001, regarding the collection of developer fees, (2) summarizes other potential funding 
sources for the District’s capital projects, and (3) presents recommendations regarding the 
collection of developer fees. 
 
A.  Findings 
 

(1) Government Code Section 66001(a)(1) - Purpose of the Fee 
 

The purpose of collecting Level II and III fees on residential development is to 
acquire funds to construct or reconstruct school facilities for the students generated by 
future residential developments. 

 
(2) Government Code Section 66001(a)(2) - Use of the Fee 
 

The District’s use of the fee will involve constructing and/or reconstructing new 
elementary, K-8, middle and high school campuses and/or additional permanent 
facilities on existing elementary, K-8, middle and high school campuses.  In addition, 
the District may build other school related facilities or purchase or lease portable 
classrooms to use for interim housing while permanent facilities are being 
constructed. 

 
Revenue from Level II and III fees collected on residential development may be used 
to pay for all of the following: 
(1) land (purchased or leased) for school facilities, 
(2) design of school facilities, 
(3) permit and plan checking fees, 
(4) construction or reconstruction of school facilities, 
(5) testing and inspection of school sites and school buildings, 
(6) furniture for use in new school facilities, and 
(7) interim school facilities (purchased or leased) to house students generated by 

future development while permanent facilities are being constructed. 
 
(3) Government Code Section 66001(a)(3) - Relationship Between Fee’s Use and the 

Type of Project on Which the Fee is Imposed 
 

All types of new residential development—including but not limited to single- and 
multi-family units in new subdivisions and in “in-fill” lots, single- and multi-family 
units in redevelopment projects, single- and multi-family units that replace 
demolished units, additions of residential space to existing single- and multi-family 
units, manufactured homes, mobile homes and condominiums—are projected to 
cause new families to move into the District and, consequently, generate additional 
students in the District.  As shown earlier in this Report, sufficient school facilities do 

98



Madera Unified School District – 2012 School Facility Needs Analysis and Justification Report 
 

12 

 

not exist for these students. Therefore, all types of new residential development create 
a need for additional school facilities. The fee’s use (acquiring school facilities) is 
reasonably related to the type of projects (new residential developments) on which it 
is imposed. 

 
(4) Government Code Section 66001(a)(4) - Relationship Between the Need for the 

Public Facility and the Type of Project on Which the Fee is Imposed 
 

The District’s enrollment is larger than its pupil capacity.  The District does not have 
sufficient existing capacity to house all students generated by future development.  
Future residential development in the District will generate additional students and, 
consequently, a need for additional school facilities. Therefore, a relationship exists 
between the District’s need to build additional school facilities and new residential 
development projects. 
 

(5) Government Code Section 66001(b) - Relationship Between the Fee and the Cost of 
the Public Facility Attributable to the Development on Which the Fee is Imposed 

 
This Report concludes that the methods prescribed by the State law for estimating 
school facility construction costs, and for calculating the Level II and Level III fees, 
supports the establishment of Level II and Level III fees which, when collected, will 
contribute to the District’s cost of constructing and reconstructing school facilities to 
house students generated by future residential development. 
 

(6) Other Funding Sources 
 

The following is a review of other potential funding sources for constructing school 
facilities: 
 

a)  General Fund 
The District's General Fund budget is typically committed to instructional and 
day-to-day operating expenses and not used for capital outlay uses, as funds are 
needed solely to meet the District’s non-facility needs. 

 
b)  State Programs 
The District has applied for and received State funding for construction of new 
school facilities under the 1998 Leroy F. Greene School Facility Program.  Even 
projects funded at 100 percent of the State allowance, however, often experience a 
shortfall between State funding and the District’s actual facility needs. State funds 
for deferred maintenance may not be used to pay for new facilities. State law 
prohibits use of lottery funds for facilities. 
 
c)  General Obligation Bonds 
School districts can, with the approval of either two-thirds or 55 percent of its 
voters, issue general obligation bonds that are paid for out of property taxes. The 
District passed a $46 million general obligation bond in November 2002 and a 
$32.5 million general obligation bond in November 2006.  

99



Madera Unified School District – 2012 School Facility Needs Analysis and Justification Report 
 

13 

 

 
d)  Parcel Taxes 
Approval by two-thirds of the voters is required to impose taxes that are not based 
on the assessed value of individual parcels. While these taxes have been 
occasionally used in school districts, the revenues are typically minor and are 
used to supplement operating budgets.   

 
e)  Mello-Roos Community Facilities Districts 
This alternative uses a tax on property owners within a defined area to pay long-
term bonds issued for specific public improvements. Mello-Roos taxes require 
approval from two-thirds of the voters (or land owners if fewer than 12) in an 
election.  

 
f)  Surplus Property 
The District has no properties that could be sold to create a significant source of 
capital outlay funds. 

 
g)  Alternatives for Reducing Facility Costs 
Alternatives to reducing facility costs, which have been used and/or explored by 
the District, include additional portable classrooms, joint-use of facilities, multi-
track-year-round education and other measures. These options remain available to 
the District in the future.  
 

B.  Recommendations 
 
Based on the findings outlined above, it is recommended that the Board of Trustees, as 
provided for in Government Code Sections 65995.5 and 65995.7, approve a resolution to 
levy Level II and Level III fees on future residential development in the amounts of $6.04 
and $12.08 per square foot, respectively. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
End of Report 

100



 

 

  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix A 
 
 

Calculation of Allowable  
Per-Pupil Grant Costs

101



 

 

  

 

Appendix A 
Calculation of Allowable Per-Pupil Grant Costs 

 
The per-pupil grant costs, calculated per the provisions of Government Code Section 
65995.5(c)(1), include the School Facility Program (SFP) grants outlined in Education Code 
Section 17072.10, fire alarm and sprinkler grants mandated by Education Code Section 
17074.56(a) and funding for Prevailing Wage Monitoring and Enforcement Costs as required 
by Labor Code Section 1771.3 and provided by the Department of Industrial Relations’ 
Compliance Monitoring Unit (CMU). 
     
Table A-1 increases the SFP base new construction grant amounts by per-pupil grant 
increases mandated by SB 575 (fire alarm and sprinkler grants).  The sum of SFP base new 
construction grant amounts and per-pupil grant increases mandated by SB 575 will be used in 
calculating the District’s Level II/III fees. 
 

Table A-1 
SFP Per-Pupil Grants Plus Fire Alarm/Sprinkler Funding 

 

Grade Group K-6 7-8 9-12 
Non-Severe Special 

Day Class 
SFP Grant $9,455 $9,999 $12,721 $17,765 
SB 575 Fire Alarm Grant $11 $16 $25 $33 
SB 575 Sprinkler Grant $159 $189 $196 $336 
50% Total Grant $9,625 $10,204 $12,942 $18,134 
100% Total Grant $19,250 $20,408 $25,884 $36,268 
Regular Pupil Adjustment*   $19,154 $19,673 $25,185 n/a 
Non-Severe SDC Adjustment** $181 $1,306 $979 n/a 
100% $19,335 $20,979 $26,164 n/a 
*Based on the percentage of Non-Special Day Class Students currently enrolled in the District (i.e., percentage of K-6, 7-8 and 9-12 students). 
** Based on the percentage of Special Day Class Students currently enrolled in the District (i.e., percentage of K-6, 7-8 and 9-12 students). 

 
Estimated total funding for the K-12 cost models in Table A-2 equals the new per-pupil base 
grants calculated above added to the per-pupil site development figures calculated in 
Appendix B, multiplied by the pupil capacity of each K-12 cost model.  Table A-2 then 
calculates the total CMU grant and per-pupil CMU grant additions for the K-12 cost models. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

(continued on next page) 

102



 

 

  

 

Table A-2 
Calculation of Per-Pupil CMU Grant Additions 

 
K-6 Projects     

School 
Per-Pupil 

Cost 
Number of 

Pupils Total Cost 
Total CMU 

Grant 
New ES $24,121 800 $19,296,800 $48,242 

Totals  800 N/A $48,242 
   100% $60 
   50% $30 

7-8 Projects     

School 
Per-Pupil 

Cost 
Number of 

Pupils Total Cost 
Total CMU 

Grant 
New MS $26,662 904 $24,102,448   $60,256 

Totals  904 N/A   $60,256 
   100% $67.00 
   50% $33.50 

9-12 Projects     

School 
Per-Pupil 

Cost 
Number of 

Pupils Total Cost 
Total CMU 

Grant 
New HS $31,381           2,400 $75,314,400 $188,286 

Totals            2,400 N/A $188,286 
   100% $78.00 
   50% $39.00 

 
Table A-3 adds 50 percent of the per-pupil CMU grant addition calculated in Table A-2 to 
the totals calculated in Table A-1 to determine the final per-pupil grants allowable for use in 
the Level II/III fee calculations. 
 

Table A-3 
Calculation of Final Per-Pupil Grant Costs by Grade Grouping 

 
            Grade Group K-6 7-8 9-12 
50% SFP Grant        $9,667.50        $10,489.50      $13,082.00 
50% CMU Grant             $30.00               $33.50             $39.00 
50% Total Grant        $9,697.50        $10,523.00      $13,121.00 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

103



 

 

  

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix B 
 
 

Calculation of Allowable Per-Pupil Site Acquisition Costs

104



 

 

  

 

Appendix B 
Calculation of Allowable Per-Pupil Site Acquisition Costs 

 
The site sizes for the District’s projects are consistent with the acreage amounts outlined in 
the guidelines in the “School Site Analysis and Development Handbook” (1966 Edition) 
published by the California State Department of Education (CDE). 
 
Site acquisition costs for the District’s elementary, middle and high school cost models are 
based on (1) actual and estimated land acquisition costs provided by District administrators 
and (2) applicable increases pursuant to Section 1859.74 of Title 2 of the California Code of 
Regulations for appraisals, surveys, site testing, CDE review/approval, preparation of the 
POESA and PEA and the DTSC cost for review, approval, and oversight of the POESA and 
the PEA and adjusted according to an annual CCI adjustment.   
 
Table B-1 calculates the total site acquisition costs for each cost model for future facilities: 
 

Table B-1 
Calculation of Total Site Acquisition Cost  

 

Cost Model 
Site Acquisition 

Per-Acre Acreage* 
Total Site 

Acquisition 
New K-6   $15,600 13.7    $213,720 
New 7-8   $15,600 21.5    $335,400 
New 9-12   $52,000 46.5 $2,418,000 
*Site sizes are consistent with the acreage amounts outlined in the guidelines in the “School Site Analysis and Development Handbook”  
(1966 Edition) published by the CDE. 

 
Table B-2 calculates the per-pupil site acquisition costs by grade grouping by taking the per-
pupil site acquisition costs of all of the above cost models and calculating the average cost 
per grade group. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(continued on the next page) 

105



 

 

  

 

Table B-2 
Calculation of Per-Pupil Site Acquisition Costs by Grade Grouping 

 
K-6 Cost Models    

 
School 

Total Site 
Acquisition 

 
K-6 Pupils 

K-6 Per-Pupil 
Site Acq. Cost 

New K-6   $213,720 800 $267 
Totals   $213,720 800 N/A 

  100% Cost $267 
7-8 Cost Model    

 
School 

Total Site 
Acquisition 

 
7-8 Pupils 

7-8 Per-Pupil 
Site Acq. Cost 

New 7-8  $335,400 904 $371 
Totals  $335,400   904* N/A 

  100% Cost $371 
9-12 Cost Model    

 
School 

Total Site 
Acquisition 

 
9-12 Pupils 

9-12 Per-Pupil 
Site Acq. Cost 

New 9-12  $2,418,000          2,400 $1,008 
Totals  $2,418,000          2,400 N/A 

  100% Cost $1,008 
*Consistent with the capacity of the District’s Desmond Middle School project (904 students). 

106



 

 

  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix C 
 
 

Calculation of Allowable Per-Pupil Site Development Costs

107



 

 

  

 

Appendix C 
Calculation of Allowable Per-Pupil Site Development Costs 

      
Site Development Costs for a K-6 School 
Service site development, off-site development and utility costs for new District K-6 school 
cost model are based on the March 26, 2008, Sate Allocation Board (SAB) meeting for the 
District’s Parkwood Elementary School project, inflated by the Class B Construction Cost 
Index methodology used the Office of Public School Construction (OPSC), from 1.94 in 
March 2008 to 2.10 in January 2012. These costs are as follows: 

 
Table C-1 

Service Site Development, Off-Site Development and Utility Services Costs  
for Elementary School Projects 

 

 
Parkwood Elementary School Project 

 
Costs 

Service Site Development, Off-Site Development and Utility 
Services  $2,119,366
Class B Construction Cost Index Adjustment (8.25%) $174,848

Total $2,294,214
Per-Acre Cost* $147,254

Total Cost for a 15.1 Acre Site ** $2,223,535
Per-Pupil Site Development Costs*** $2,779

*Based on 15.58 acres. 
**Consistent with the Master Planned Site Acreage approvable by the CDE. 
****Planned elementary school capacity is 800 students.  

 
Estimated general site development costs for District elementary school projects are based on 
the average allowable general site development costs, as defined in Section 1859.76 of Title 
2 of the California Code of Regulations. These costs are as follows: 
 

Table C-2 
General Site Development Costs for Elementary School Projects 

 

 
Elementary School Cost Model Projects 

 
Acres

Per-Acre
Cost 

 
Pupils 

Per-Pupil 
Cost 

 
Costs 

Per-Useable Acre General Site Cost  15.1 $30,730 n/a n/a    $464,023
Per-Pupil General Site Cost  n/a n/a 800 $1,160*    $928,000

Totals n/a n/a 800 n/a $1,392,023 
Average Per-Pupil General Site Development Cost**        $1,740

*Equals 6% of the K-6 per-pupil base grant amount of $19,335. 
**Equals the totals of the General Site Costs, divided by the pupil capacity of the projects. 

 
The total anticipated Site Development Costs for District elementary school projects equals 
the per-pupil service site, off-site and utility development cost for the District’s elementary 
school projects, plus the average per-pupil general site development costs related to the 
District’s elementary school projects. The following table illustrates the total per-pupil site 
development costs for future District elementary school projects. 

108



 

 

  

 

 
 

Table C-3 
Total Site Development Costs for Elementary School Projects 

 

 
Elementary School Projects 

 
Costs 

Average Per-Pupil Service Site, Off-Site and Utility Costs $2,779
Average Per-Pupil General Site Development Costs  $1,740

Total Per-Pupil Site Development Cost $4,519
 

Site Development Costs for a 7-8 School 
Service site development, off-site development, and utility costs for a new District 7-8 
middle school cost model are based on the costs approved at the March 24, 2004, SAB 
meeting for the District’s Nishimoto Elementary & Desmond Middle School (K-8 project), 
inflated by the Class B Construction Cost Index methodology used by the OPSC, from 1.52 
in March 2004 to 2.10 in January 2012. These costs are as follows:       
 

Table C-4 
Service Site Development, Off-Site Development and Utility Services Costs  

for Middle School Projects 
 

 
 

Nishimoto Elementary & Desmond Middle (K-8 Project) 

 
 

Costs 
Service Site Development, Off-Site Development and Utility 
Services  $3,664,802
Class B Construction Cost Index Adjustment (38.16%) $1,398,488

Total $5,063,290
Total Capacity 1,530

K-8 Per-Pupil Site Development Costs $3,309
 7-8 Capacity of Desmond Middle School 904

Total 7-8 Site Development Costs $2,991,336
7-8 Per-Pupil Site Development Costs $3,309

   

Estimated general site development costs for District middle school projects are based on the 
average allowable general site development costs, as defined in Section 1859.76 of Title 2 of 
the California Code of Regulations. These costs are as follows: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(continued on next page) 

109



 

 

  

 

Table C-5 
General Site Development Costs for Middle School Projects 

 
 

Middle School Cost Model Projects 
 

Acres 
Per-Acre

Cost 
 

Pupils 
Per-Pupil 

Cost 
 

Costs 
Per-Useable Acre General Site Cost 21.9 $30,730 n/a n/a     $672,987 
Per-Pupil General Site Cost  n/a n/a 904 $1,259*  $1,138,136 

Totals n/a n/a 904 n/a   $1,811,123 
Average Per-Pupil General Site Development Cost**        $2,003 

*Equals 6% of the 7-8 per-pupil base grant amount of $20,979. 
**Equals the totals of the General Site Costs, divided by the pupil capacity of the projects. 

 
The total anticipated Site Development Costs for District middle school projects equals the 
per-pupil service site, off-site and utility development cost for the District’s middle school 
projects, plus the average per-pupil general site development costs related to the District’s 
middle school projects. The following table illustrates the total per-pupil site development 
costs for future District middle school projects. 

 
Table C-6 

Total Site Development Costs for Middle School Projects 
 

 
Middle School Projects 

 
Costs 

Average Per-Pupil Service Site, Off-Site and Utility Costs $3,309
Average Per-Pupil General Site Development Costs $2,003

Total Per-Pupil Site Development Cost $5,312
 
Site Development Costs for 9-12 Projects 
Service site development, off-site development and utility costs for new District 9-12 school 
cost model are based on a July 2005 cost estimate provided by the project civil engineer for 
the District’s planned New High School project, inflated by the Class B Construction Cost 
Index methodology used by the OPSC, from 1.71 in July 2005 to 2.10 in January 2012. 
These costs are as follows:       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(continued on next page) 

110



 

 

  

 

Table C-7 
Service Site Development, Off-Site Development and Utility Services Costs  

for High School Projects 
 

 
New High School Project 

 
Site Development 

Costs 
Site Development Costs (Service Site, Off-Site and Utility 
Services)  $5,426,636
Class B Construction Cost Index Adjustment (22.81%) $1,237,816

Total $6,664,452
Per-Acre Site Development Cost* $116,267

Total Site Development Cost for a 52.7 Acre Site** $6,127,271
Total Capacity 2,400

Per-Pupil Site Development Costs $2,553
*Based on 57.32 acres. 
**Consistent with the Master Planned Site Acreage approvable by the CDE.  

 
Estimated general site development costs for District high school projects are based on the 
average allowable general site development costs, as defined in Section 1859.76 of Title 2 of 
the California Code of Regulations. These costs are as follows: 

 
Table C-8 

General Site Development Costs for High School Projects 
 

 
High School Cost Model Projects 

 
Acres

Per-Acre
Cost 

 
Pupils 

Per-Pupil 
Cost 

 
Costs 

Per-Useable Acre General Site Cost 52.7 $30,730 n/a n/a $1,619,471
Per-Pupil General Site Cost  n/a n/a 2,400 $981* $2,354,400

Totals n/a n/a 2,400 n/a $3,973,871 
Average Per-Pupil General Site Development Cost**        $1,656

*Equals 3.75% of the 9-12 per-pupil base grant amount of $26,164. 
**Equals the totals of the General Site Costs, divided by the pupil capacity of the projects. 

 
The total anticipated Site Development Costs for District high school projects equals the per-
pupil service site, off-site and utility development cost for the District’s high school projects, 
plus the average per-pupil general site development costs related to the District’s high school 
projects. The following table illustrates the total per-pupil site development costs for future 
District high school projects. 

 
Table C-9 

Total Site Development Costs for High School Projects 
 

 
High School Projects 

 
Costs 

Average Per-Pupil Service Site, Off-Site and Utility Costs $2,553
Average Per-Pupil General Site Development Costs $1,656

Total Per-Pupil Site Development Cost $4,209
 

111



SDPUB\TDORWARD\398596.1 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 11-2012/2013 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE 
MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

ADOPTING A FEE JUSTIFICATION STUDY AND  
SCHOOL FACILITIES SFNA AND 

ESTABLISHING AND ADOPTING ALTERNATIVE SCHOOL FACILITY 
FEES IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT CODE  

SECTIONS 65995.5, 65995.6, AND 65995.7 

WHEREAS, the governing board of the Madera Unified School District (“Board”) has elected 

to participate in the school facilities funding program established pursuant to the Leroy F. Greene 

School Facilities Act of 1998 (“Act”) for both modernization and new construction projects; and 

WHEREAS, under the Act, the Board may establish fees to offset the cost of school facilities 

made necessary by new construction following the making of certain findings; and   

WHEREAS, the Madera Unified School District (“District”) has undertaken a review of its 

eligibility to establish fees under the Act; and 

WHEREAS, the District has completed and certified State Allocation Board (“SAB”) Form 50-

04 (Application for Funding) and SAB Form 50-05 (Fund Release Authorization) for new construction 

funding prior to the adoption of this Resolution; and 

WHEREAS, at least twenty percent (20%) of the District's teaching stations are relocatable 

classrooms; and 

WHEREAS, the District meets the bonding capacity requirements of the Act; and 

WHEREAS, the District has prepared an analysis entitled "Schools Facility SFNA and 

Justification Study,” dated July 2012, (the “SFNA”) for purposes of adopting alternative school facility 

fees pursuant to Government Code Sections 65995.5 (“Level II Fee”) (“Alternative School Facility 

Fee”) in accordance with applicable law; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has reviewed and considered the SFNA which includes all of the 

findings required by applicable law, including an analysis of the purpose of the Alternative School 

Facility Fee and the reasonable relationship between the Alternative School Facility Fee and the need for 

new school facilities to accommodate students generated from new residential construction; and 

112



SDPUB\TDORWARD\398596.1 2 

WHEREAS, the District does not have sufficient funds available for the construction or 

reconstruction of school facilities, including acquisition of school sites, construction of permanent 

school facilities, and interim school facilities to accommodate students generated from new 

development; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has satisfied all of the requirements of Government ode Section 65995.5 

to be eligible to establish and levy fees pursuant to the Act; and  

WHEREAS, in accordance with Government Code Section 65995.5, 65995.6 and 65995.7, the 

purpose of this Resolution is to adopt a SFNA and to establish and levy fees under the provisions of the 

Act consistent with the information and data set forth in the SFNA and upon such other information and 

documentation prepared by or on file with the District, as presented and described to the Board. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BOARD OF 

THE MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Recitals.  The above recitals are true and correct. 

Section 2. Procedure.  The District has complied with all applicable notice, public review, 

and hearing requirements necessary to adopt the SFNA and establish and levy fees under the Act.  

Specifically: 

(a) Prior to the adoption of this Resolution, the Board conducted a public hearing to 

adopt the SFNA at its September 11, 2012, regular meeting at which time all persons desiring to 

comment on the SFNA were heard and all information was duly considered. 

(b) Notice of the time and place of the public hearing, including the location and 

procedure for viewing or requesting a copy of the proposed SFNA and any proposed revision of the 

SFNA, has been published in a newspaper of general circulation in accordance with Government Code 

Section 65995.6(d), and a notice, including a statement that the SFNA required by Government Code 

Section 65995.6 was available, was mailed at least 30 days prior to the public hearing to any interested 

party who had previously filed a written request with the District for mailed notice of the meeting on 

new or increased fees or service charges within the period specified by law.   

(c) At least 30 days prior to the public hearing, the District made available to the 

public in its SFNA, data indicating the amount of the costs, or estimated costs, required to provide the 

113



SDPUB\TDORWARD\398596.1 3 

facilities for which the fee is to be levied pursuant to this Resolution, and the revenue sources 

anticipated to provide this service. 

(d) By way of a public meeting, the Board received oral and written presentations by 

District staff which are summarized and contained in the District's SFNA and the District's applications 

and related documents filed with the State Allocation Board in accordance with relevant law, along with 

materials which formed the basis for the action taken pursuant to this Resolution. 

Section 3. Findings.  The Board has reviewed the provisions of the SFNA as it relates to 

proposed and potential development, the resulting school facilities needs, the cost thereof, and the 

available sources of revenue including the fees provided by this Resolution, and based thereon and upon 

all other written and oral presentations to the Board, the Board hereby approves and adopts the SFNA 

and makes the following findings: 

(a) Enrollment at the various District schools is presently at or exceeding capacity; 

(b) Additional development projects within the District, whether new residential 

construction or residential reconstruction involving increases in habitable area will increase the need for 

school facilities; 

(c) Without the addition of new school facilities, further residential development 

projects within the District will result in a significant decrease in the quality of education presently 

offered by the District; 

(d) New residential development is projected within the District's boundaries and the 

enrollment produced thereby will exceed the capacity of the schools of the District.  Projected 

development within the District, without additional school facilities, will result in conditions of 

overcrowding which will impair the normal functioning of the District's educational programs; 

(e) The fees proposed in the SFNA and levied pursuant to this Resolution are for the 

purpose of providing adequate school facilities and related support facilities to maintain the quality of 

education offered by the District; 

114



SDPUB\TDORWARD\398596.1 4 

(f) The fees proposed in the SFNA and levied pursuant to this Resolution will be 

used for construction and reconstruction of school facilities and support facilities as identified in the 

SFNA; 

(g) The uses of the fees proposed in the SFNA and levied pursuant to this Resolution 

are reasonably related to the types of development projects on which the fees are imposed; 

(h) The fees proposed in the SFNA and levied pursuant to this Resolution bear a 

reasonable relationship to the need for school and support facilities created by the types of development 

projects on which the fees are imposed; 

(i) The fees proposed in the SFNA and levied pursuant to this Resolution do not 

exceed the estimated amount required to provide funding for the construction of reconstruction of school 

and support facilities for which the fees are levied; and in making this finding, the Board declares that it 

has considered the availability of revenue sources anticipated to provide such facilities, including 

general fund revenue; and 

(j) The fees will be collected for school and support facilities for which an account 

has been established and funds appropriated and for which the District has adopted a construction 

schedule or in some instances, will be used to reimburse the District for expenditures previously made. 

Section 4. Determination of Eligibility. 

(a) The District has submitted a timely application to the State Allocation Board for 

new construction funding, and has met the eligibility requirements for new construction funding 

pursuant to the provisions of the Leroy F. Green School Facilities Act of 1998. 

(b) In accordance with the provisions of Government Code Section 65995.5(b)(3)(C) 

and 65995.5(b)(3)(D), the District meets the local bonding capacity requirements and the District uses 

relocatable classrooms for at least 20% of its teacher stations. 

Section 5. Adoption of SFNA. 

(a) The Board has reviewed the provisions of the SFNA along with such oral and 

written information as has been presented by District staff and consultants and has determined that the 

115



SDPUB\TDORWARD\398596.1 5 

SFNA meets the requirements of Government Code Section 65995.6 and is a suitable basis for the 

establishment of Level II and Level III fees in accordance with the provisions of Government Code 

Section 65995.5 and 65995.7, and hereby adopts the SFNA. 

Section 6. Determination and Establishment of Fee.  Based upon the foregoing findings, the 

Board hereby establishes and levies a new fee upon residential construction within the District, to be 

known as the “Level II Fee” and the “Level III Fee” as follows: 

(a) Level II Fee.  The Level II Fee for new residential construction is hereby 

established and set at the rate of $6.04 per square foot of residential development.  The Level II Fee 

shall be collected as a precondition to the issuance of any building permit for construction within the 

District's boundaries.   

(b) Level III Fee.  In accordance with the provisions of Government Code section 

65995.7, the District's Board is authorized to establish a fee in an amount higher than the Level II fee in 

the event the State Allocation Board is no longer approving apportionments for new construction in 

accordance with Education Code section 17072.20 et seq. due to lack of funds, and the State Allocation 

Board has notified the Secretary of the Senate and Chief Clerk of the Assembly, in writing, of the 

determination that such funds are no longer being allocated.  In the event that on or before the 

Anniversary Date of this Resolution as defined below, the State Allocation Board is no longer approving 

apportionments due to inadequate funding and such fact is relayed to the appropriate state 

representatives, a fee calculated pursuant to Government Code section 65995.7, the Level III fee, may 

be levied.  The Level III Fee for residential construction is hereby established and set at the rate of 

$12.08 per square foot of residential development.   

(c) The Level III Fee shall be placed in effect immediately by action of the 

Superintendent, without any additional action by the Board other than a determination by the 

Superintendent that the requirements of Government Code section 65995.7 as outlined above have been 

met. 

Section 7. Fee Adjustments and Limitations.  The fees established herewith shall be subject 

to the following: 

116



SDPUB\TDORWARD\398596.1 6 

(a) The District's Level II Fee shall be effective for a period of one (1) year following 

the effective date of this Resolution as set forth below and shall be reviewed annually to determine if 

such fee is to be re-established or revised. 

(b) The Level II Fee established hereby shall not apply during the term of any 

contract entered into between a subdivider or builder and the District, or any applicable city or county on 

or before January 1, 1987, that requires the payment of a fee, charge or dedication for the construction of 

school facilities as a condition to the approval of residential development. 

(c) The Level II Fee established hereby shall not apply during the term of any 

contract entered into between a person and the District or any applicable city or the County, after 

January 1, 1987 but before November 4, 1998 that requires payment of a fee, charge, or dedication for 

school facilities mitigation. 

(d) The Level II Fee established hereby shall not apply to any construction that is not 

subject to a contract such as described above, but that is carried out on real property for which 

residential development was made subject to a condition relating to school facilities imposed by a state 

or local agency in connection with a legislative act approving or authorizing such residential 

development after January 1, 2000, such construction shall be subject to the Level II Fee or the Level III 

Fee as applicable.   

Section 8. Additional Mitigation Methods.  The policies set forth in this Resolution are not 

exclusive, and the Board reserves the authority to undertake other or additional methods to finance 

school facilities including but not limited to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 

(Government Code §§53311, et seq.) and such other funding mechanisms as are authorized by 

Government Code Section 65996.  This Board reserves the authority to substitute the dedication of land 

or other property or other form of mitigation requirement in lieu of the fees levied by way of this 

Resolution at its discretion, so long as the reasonable value of land to be dedicated does not exceed the 

maximum fee amounts contained herein or modified pursuant hereto. 

Section 9. Implementation.  For construction projects within the District, the Superintendent, 

or the Superintendent's designee, is authorized to issue Certificates of Compliance upon the payment of 

any fee levied under the authority of this Resolution. 

117



SDPUB\TDORWARD\398596.1 7 

Section 10. California Environmental Quality Act.  The Board hereby finds that, in 

accordance with Government Code Section 65995.6(g), the fees established pursuant to this Resolution 

are exempt from the provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), and hereby directs 

District staff to file a Notice of Exemption with the Office of the Madera County Clerk. 

Section 11. Effective Date.  The Board orders that the fees established hereby shall take effect 

immediately after adoption of this Resolution and shall be in effect for one (1) year. 

Section 12. Notification of Local Agencies.  The Secretary of the Board or District staff 

designee is hereby directed to forward certified copies of this Resolution, accompanied by all relevant 

supporting documentation including the SFNA, and a map of the boundary area of the District subject to 

the Level II Fee, to all appropriate land use jurisdictions issuing building permits within the District, 

informing each of them of the District’s current school facilities fee for development projects.   

Section 13. Severability.  If any portion of this Resolution is found by a Court of competent 

jurisdiction to be invalid, such finding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this 

Resolution.  The Board hereby declares its intent to adopt this Resolution irrespective of the fact that one 

or more of its provisions may be declared invalid subsequent hereto.   

APPROVED, PASSED and ADOPTED by the Board of Trustees of the Madera Unified School 

District this 11th day of September, 2012, by the following vote: 

 AYES: 

 NOES: 

 ABSTAIN: 

 ABSENT: 

 
__________________________________ 
President, Board of Trustees   
Madera Unified School District 

ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Secretary, Board of Trustees   
Madera Unified School District 
 

118



 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 12-2012/2013 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE 
MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

ADOPTING A FEE JUSTIFICATION STUDY AND  
SCHOOL FACILITIES SFNA AND 

ESTABLISHING AND ADOPTING ALTERNATIVE SCHOOL FACILITY 
FEES IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT CODE  

SECTIONS 65995.5, 65995.6, AND 65995.7 

WHEREAS, the governing board of the Madera Unified School District (“Board”) has elected 

to participate in the school facilities funding program established pursuant to the Leroy F. Greene 

School Facilities Act of 1998 (“Act”) for both modernization and new construction projects; and 

WHEREAS, under the Act, the Board may establish fees to offset the cost of school facilities 

made necessary by new construction following the making of certain findings; and   

WHEREAS, the Madera Unified School District (“District”) has undertaken a review of its 

eligibility to establish fees under the Act; and 

WHEREAS, the District has completed and certified State Allocation Board (“SAB”) Form 50-

04 (Application for Funding) and SAB Form 50-05 (Fund Release Authorization) for new construction 

funding prior to the adoption of this Resolution; and 

WHEREAS, at least twenty percent (20%) of the District's teaching stations are relocatable 

classrooms; and 

WHEREAS, the District meets the bonding capacity requirements of the Act; and 

WHEREAS, the District has prepared an analysis entitled "Schools Facility SFNA and 

Justification Study,” dated July 2012, (the “SFNA”) for purposes of adopting alternative school facility 

fees pursuant to Government Code Sections 65995.5 (“Level II Fee”) (“Alternative School Facility 

Fee”) in accordance with applicable law; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has reviewed and considered the SFNA which includes all of the 

findings required by applicable law, including an analysis of the purpose of the Alternative School 

Facility Fee and the reasonable relationship between the Alternative School Facility Fee and the need for 

new school facilities to accommodate students generated from new residential construction; and 

119



 2 

WHEREAS, the District does not have sufficient funds available for the construction or 

reconstruction of school facilities, including acquisition of school sites, construction of permanent 

school facilities, and interim school facilities to accommodate students generated from new 

development; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has satisfied all of the requirements of Government Code Section 

65995.5 to be eligible to establish and levy fees pursuant to the Act; and  

WHEREAS, in accordance with Government Code Section 65995.5, 65995.6 and 65995.7, the 

purpose of this Resolution is to adopt a SFNA and to establish and levy fees under the provisions of the 

Act consistent with the information and data set forth in the SFNA and upon such other information and 

documentation prepared by or on file with the District, as presented and described to the Board. 

WHEREAS, although the SFNA contains the data and findings necessary to support an increase 

in the Level II and Level III fees as set forth therein, the Board, as described below, and in order to 

support the local economy during the current economic downturn, the Board desires to hold the Level II 

and Level III fees flat and continue impose only the current Level II and Level III fee amounts without 

an increase.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BOARD OF 

THE MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Recitals.  The above recitals are true and correct. 

Section 2. Procedure.  The District has complied with all applicable notice, public review, 

and hearing requirements necessary to adopt the SFNA and establish and levy fees under the Act.  

Specifically: 

(a) Prior to the adoption of this Resolution, the Board conducted a public hearing to 

adopt the SFNA at its September 11, 2012, regular meeting at which time all persons desiring to 

comment on the SFNA were heard and all information was duly considered. 

(b) Notice of the time and place of the public hearing, including the location and 

procedure for viewing or requesting a copy of the proposed SFNA and any proposed revision of the 

SFNA, has been published in a newspaper of general circulation in accordance with Government Code 

Section 65995.6(d), and a notice, including a statement that the SFNA required by Government Code 

Section 65995.6 was available, was mailed at least 30 days prior to the public hearing to any interested 

120



 3 

party who had previously filed a written request with the District for mailed notice of the meeting on 

new or increased fees or service charges within the period specified by law.   

(c) At least 30 days prior to the public hearing, the District made available to the 

public in its SFNA, data indicating the amount of the costs, or estimated costs, required to provide the 

facilities for which the fee is to be levied pursuant to this Resolution, and the revenue sources 

anticipated to provide this service. 

(d) By way of a public meeting, the Board received oral and written presentations by 

District staff which are summarized and contained in the District's SFNA and the District's applications 

and related documents filed with the State Allocation Board in accordance with relevant law, along with 

materials which formed the basis for the action taken pursuant to this Resolution. 

Section 3. Findings.  The Board has reviewed the provisions of the SFNA as it relates to 

proposed and potential development, the resulting school facilities needs, the cost thereof, and the 

available sources of revenue including the fees provided by this Resolution, and based thereon and upon 

all other written and oral presentations to the Board, the Board hereby approves and adopts the SFNA 

and makes the following findings: 

(a) Enrollment at the various District schools is presently at or exceeding capacity; 

(b) Additional development projects within the District, whether new residential 

construction or residential reconstruction involving increases in habitable area will increase the need for 

school facilities; 

(c) Without the addition of new school facilities, further residential development 

projects within the District will result in a significant decrease in the quality of education presently 

offered by the District; 

(d) New residential development is projected within the District's boundaries and the 

enrollment produced thereby will exceed the capacity of the schools of the District.  Projected 

development within the District, without additional school facilities, will result in conditions of 

overcrowding which will impair the normal functioning of the District's educational programs; 

121



 4 

(e) The fees proposed in the SFNA and levied pursuant to this Resolution are for the 

purpose of providing adequate school facilities and related support facilities to maintain the quality of 

education offered by the District; 

(f) The fees proposed in the SFNA and levied pursuant to this Resolution will be 

used for construction and reconstruction of school facilities and support facilities as identified in the 

SFNA; 

(g) The uses of the fees proposed in the SFNA and levied pursuant to this Resolution 

are reasonably related to the types of development projects on which the fees are imposed; 

(h) The fees proposed in the SFNA and levied pursuant to this Resolution bear a 

reasonable relationship to the need for school and support facilities created by the types of development 

projects on which the fees are imposed; 

(i) The fees proposed in the SFNA and levied pursuant to this Resolution do not 

exceed the estimated amount required to provide funding for the construction of reconstruction of school 

and support facilities for which the fees are levied; and in making this finding, the Board declares that it 

has considered the availability of revenue sources anticipated to provide such facilities, including 

general fund revenue; and 

(j) The fees will be collected for school and support facilities for which an account 

has been established and funds appropriated and for which the District has adopted a construction 

schedule or in some instances, will be used to reimburse the District for expenditures previously made. 

Section 4. Determination of Eligibility. 

(a) The District has submitted a timely application to the State Allocation Board for 

new construction funding, and has met the eligibility requirements for new construction funding 

pursuant to the provisions of the Leroy F. Green School Facilities Act of 1998. 

(b) In accordance with the provisions of Government Code Section 65995.5(b)(3)(C) 

and 65995.5(b)(3)(D), the District meets the local bonding capacity requirements and the District uses 

relocatable classrooms for at least 20% of its teacher stations. 

122



 5 

Section 5. Adoption of SFNA. 

(a) The Board has reviewed the provisions of the SFNA along with such oral and 

written information as has been presented by District staff and consultants and has determined that the 

SFNA meets the requirements of Government Code Section 65995.6 and is a suitable basis for the 

establishment of Level II and Level III fees in accordance with the provisions of Government Code 

Section 65995.5 and 65995.7, and hereby adopts the SFNA. 

Section 6. Determination and Establishment of Fee.  Based upon the foregoing findings, the 

Board hereby establishes and levies a new fee upon residential construction within the District, to be 

known as the “Level II Fee” and the “Level III Fee” as follows: 

(a) Level II Fee.  The Level II Fee for new residential construction is hereby 

established and set at the rate of $6.04 per square foot of residential development.  The Level II Fee 

shall be collected as a precondition to the issuance of any building permit for construction within the 

District's boundaries.   

(b) Level III Fee.  In accordance with the provisions of Government Code section 

65995.7, the District's Board is authorized to establish a fee in an amount higher than the Level II fee in 

the event the State Allocation Board is no longer approving apportionments for new construction in 

accordance with Education Code section 17072.20 et seq. due to lack of funds, and the State Allocation 

Board has notified the Secretary of the Senate and Chief Clerk of the Assembly, in writing, of the 

determination that such funds are no longer being allocated.  In the event that on or before the 

Anniversary Date of this Resolution as defined below, the State Allocation Board is no longer approving 

apportionments due to inadequate funding and such fact is relayed to the appropriate state 

representatives, a fee calculated pursuant to Government Code section 65995.7, the Level III fee, may 

be levied.  The Level III Fee for residential construction is hereby established and set at the rate of 

$12.08 per square foot of residential development.   

(c) The Level III Fee shall be placed in effect immediately by action of the 

Superintendent, without any additional action by the Board other than a determination by the 

Superintendent that the requirements of Government Code section 65995.7 as outlined above have been 

met. 

123



 6 

Section 7. Fee Adjustments and Limitations.  The fees established herewith shall be subject 

to the following: 

(a) In light of the current economic downturn and the Board’s desire to support the 

local economy and development within the District’s boundaries, the Board finds that the increase in the 

Level II and Level III fee amounts described in the SFNA shall not be imposed following the adoption 

of this Resolution.  Instead, the Board hereby directs District staff to continue to impose the current 

Level II fee amount of $5.97 per square foot and Level III fee amount of $11.94 per square foot without 

an increase following the effective date of this resolution, and for the effective period described below.  

Board directs and authorizes staff to take all necessary steps to effectuate the collection of this reduced 

fee amount. 

(b) The District's Level II Fee shall be effective for a period of one (1) year following 

the effective date of this Resolution as set forth below and shall be reviewed annually to determine if 

such fee is to be re-established or revised. 

(c) The Level II Fee established hereby shall not apply during the term of any 

contract entered into between a subdivider or builder and the District, or any applicable city or county on 

or before January 1, 1987, that requires the payment of a fee, charge or dedication for the construction of 

school facilities as a condition to the approval of residential development. 

(d) The Level II Fee established hereby shall not apply during the term of any 

contract entered into between a person and the District or any applicable city or the County, after 

January 1, 1987 but before November 4, 1998 that requires payment of a fee, charge, or dedication for 

school facilities mitigation. 

(e) The Level II Fee established hereby shall not apply to any construction that is not 

subject to a contract such as described above, but that is carried out on real property for which 

residential development was made subject to a condition relating to school facilities imposed by a state 

or local agency in connection with a legislative act approving or authorizing such residential 

development after January 1, 2000, such construction shall be subject to the Level II Fee or the Level III 

Fee as applicable.   

124



 7 

Section 8. Additional Mitigation Methods.  The policies set forth in this Resolution are not 

exclusive, and the Board reserves the authority to undertake other or additional methods to finance 

school facilities including but not limited to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 

(Government Code §§53311, et seq.) and such other funding mechanisms as are authorized by 

Government Code Section 65996.  This Board reserves the authority to substitute the dedication of land 

or other property or other form of mitigation requirement in lieu of the fees levied by way of this 

Resolution at its discretion, so long as the reasonable value of land to be dedicated does not exceed the 

maximum fee amounts contained herein or modified pursuant hereto. 

Section 9. Implementation.  For construction projects within the District, the Superintendent, 

or the Superintendent's designee, is authorized to issue Certificates of Compliance upon the payment of 

any fee levied under the authority of this Resolution. 

Section 10. California Environmental Quality Act.  The Board hereby finds that, in 

accordance with Government Code Section 65995.6(g), the fees established pursuant to this Resolution 

are exempt from the provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), and hereby directs 

District staff to file a Notice of Exemption with the Office of the Madera County Clerk. 

Section 11. Effective Date.  The Board orders that the fees established hereby shall take effect 

immediately after adoption of this Resolution and shall be in effect for one (1) year. 

Section 12. Notification of Local Agencies.  The Secretary of the Board or District staff 

designee is hereby directed to forward certified copies of this Resolution, accompanied by all relevant 

supporting documentation including the SFNA, and a map of the boundary area of the District subject to 

the Level II Fee, to all appropriate land use jurisdictions issuing building permits within the District, 

informing each of them of the District’s current school facilities fee for development projects.   

Section 13. Severability.  If any portion of this Resolution is found by a Court of competent 

jurisdiction to be invalid, such finding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this 

Resolution.  The Board hereby declares its intent to adopt this Resolution irrespective of the fact that one 

or more of its provisions may be declared invalid subsequent hereto.   

APPROVED, PASSED and ADOPTED by the Board of Trustees of the Madera Unified School 

District this 11th day of September, 2012, by the following vote: 

125



 8 

 AYES: 

 NOES: 

 ABSTAIN: 

 ABSENT: 

 
__________________________________ 
President, Board of Trustees   
Madera Unified School District 

ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Secretary, Board of Trustees   
Madera Unified School District 
 

126



AGENDA ITEM 
MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
           
 
 
Date: September 11, 2012     
 
Subject: Request Approval of Agreement between Madera Adult Educators  
 (MAE) and Madera Unified School District (DISTRICT) for the  
 2012-2013 School Year 
 
Responsible Staff: Dr. Anthony A. Monreal, Deputy Superintendent 
 
 Tracie Green, Director of Human Resources/Labor Relations 
 
Agenda Placement:    New Business 
 
Background/ rationale:  Contract negotiations have been completed and this agreement 
provides for contract language changes to the collective bargaining agreement for the 2012-
2013 school year. 
 
Financial impact:  $207,480 
 

Superintendent’s recommendation:  The Superintendent recommends approval of this 
agreement. 
 
Supporting documents attached:  
Tentative Agreement between MAE and MUSD 
Public Disclosure of Collective Bargaining Agreement 
 

127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



AGENDA ITEM 
MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
                     
 
Date:       September 11, 2012     
 
Subject:    Request approval to award a construction contract to the lowest  
      responsible and responsive bid for the 1 Relocatable Classroom at  
      Pershing Project.  
 
Responsible Staff:  Rosalind Cox, Facilities Planning & Construction Mgmt./Purchasing 
 
Agenda Placement:  New Business 
 
Background/ rationale:   
 
On September 11, 2012, bids will be received and opened for the 1 Relocatable Classroom at 
Pershing project.   As a result of the bid opening date and the Board Meeting date, staff will 
provide a summary of the bids for Board review prior to the board meeting. 
 
At the June 12, 2012 board meeting, the Board approved moving forward to install a new 
relocatable classroom at Pershing Elementary School, due to increasing enrollment numbers 
and transitional kindergarten needs. The site is utilizing a reading lab as a classroom until 
the relocatable classroom is installed.   
 
Financial impact:  To be determined.   
 
Superintendent’s recommendation: 
 
The Superintendent recommends awarding a construction contract to the lowest responsible 
and responsive bidder for the 1 Relocatable Classroom at Pershing project.  
 
Supporting documents attached:  
 
A detailed analysis will be provided to the Board prior to the meeting.  
 

141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



AGENDA ITEM 
MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
           
 
Date:     September 11, 2012   
 
Subject:    Issuance of Expulsion/ Readmission Orders 
 
Responsible Staff:     Dr. Anthony A. Monreal, Deputy Superintendent  
     Deborah A. Wood, Associate Superintendent of Educational Services  
 
Agenda Placement:   New Business 
 
Background/ rationale:  
The Governing Board is requested to adopt the findings, conclusions and recommendations 
related to the possible expulsion or readmission of pupils as these are presented to the board 
in one or more of the following forms of documentation:  
 

• Reports(s) of Administrative hearing Panel(s) 
• Expulsion Status Review Report(s) by the Superintendent’s Designee 
• Stipulated Expulsion Agreement(s) 

 
The Governing Board is also requested to issue orders consistent with the above referenced 
findings, conclusions and recommendations related to the possible expulsion or readmission 
of pupils in the cases of the following students, herein identified by their district-assigned 
identification numbers:  200457, 200702, 5296, 202623, 16395, 5184, 304090, 203207, 
17628, 401697, 202779, 202311, 303579, 15473, and 303630.   
 
 

Financial impact:   None   
 
 

Superintendent’s recommendation: 
The Superintendent recommends adoption of the findings, conclusions and 
recommendations made by staff. 
 
 

Supporting documents attached:  
Confidential information regarding each student is provided to the Board under separate 
cover. 
 

 

172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216


	Agenda
	Request Approval of Regular Board Meeting Minutes of August 28, 2012
	August 28, 2012 Board Minutes

	Request Adoption of Resolution No. 09-2012/13 Operations Application for K-3 Class Size Reduction
	Agenda Item and K-3 CSR Application

	Request Adoption of Resolution No.10-2012/13: GANN Limit Calculations for 2011-12 actuals and 2012-13 estimated actuals.
	Agenda Item Cover and Resolution #10-2012/2013 GANN Limit Calculations

	Request Ratification of Memorandum of Understanding between Madera County Superintendent of Schools (MCSOS) and Madera Unified School District for services provided in support of the Educating Homeless Children and Youth Grant  (EHCY) beginning July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2013.
	Agenda Item Cover
	MCSOS EHCY MOU 12-13

	Request approval of Contract between Madera Unified School District and Stanislaus County Office of Education to provide English as a Second Language classes for two Migrant Head Start Centers
	Agenda Item Cover
	Stanislaus Co. Office of Ed - Contract 

	Request Approval of We Give Books/Pearson Foundation Read for the Record Book Grant Agreement between Madera Unified and Pearson Foundation

	Agenda Item Cover
	Pearson Book Grant Agreement

	Request approval of Consultant Services Agreement between Madera Unified School District and Houghton Mifflin Harcourt/ Riverside Publishing
	Agenda Item Cover
	HMH Agreement

	Request approval of the Memorandum of Understanding for the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Education (SNAP-Ed) between Madera County Public Health Department (MCPHD) and Madera Unified School District (MUSD)
	Agenda Item Cover
	SNAP-Ed MOU
	HOM Content Standard

	Request Approval of Amendment 1 of 2012-13 Child Development Contract CSPP-2270 between Madera Unified School District and California Department of Education.
	Agenda Item Cover
	Amendment 1 

	Request Approval of Memorandums of Understanding between Madera Unified School District and Bass Lake Joint Union Elementary School District, Chawanakee Unified School District, Chowchilla Elementary School District, Chowchilla Union High School District, Golden Valley Unified School District, Madera County Office of Education, Ezequiel Tafoya Alvarado Academy, and Sherman Thomas Charter School
	Agenda Item Cover
	MOU Sample

	Request Approval of June 30, 2012 Student Body Statement of Club Trust Accounts
	June 30, 2012 Student Body Accounts

	Request Approval of Staffing and Coaches Lists
	Staffing List 9-11-12
	Coaches List 9-11-12

	Field Trips 9/11/12
	Student Overnight or Out of State Field Trips

	Request Adoption of a Resolution that approves the School Facility Needs Analysis authorizing the levying of alternative school facility fees on residential development.
	Agenda Item Cover
	School Facility Needs Analysis
	Resolution No. 11-2012/13
	Resolution No. 12-2012/13

	Request Approval of Agreement between Madera Adult Educators (MAE) and Madera Unified School District (DISTRICT) for the 2012-2013 School Year
	Agenda Item Cover
	Tentative Agreement & Public Disclosure

	Request approval to award a construction contract to the lowest responsible and responsive bid for the 1 Relocatable Classroom at Pershing project.
	Agenda Item Cover

	Request Approval of 2011-12 Unaudited Actuals Financial Report
	Agenda Item Cover & 2011-12 Financial Report

	The Governing Board is requested to adopt the findings, conclusions and recommendations related to the possible expulsion or readmission of pupils as these are presented to the board in one or more of the following forms of documentation: 

•	Reports(s) of Administrative hearing Panel(s)
•	Expulsion Status Review Report(s) by the Superintendent’s Designee
•	Stipulated Expulsion Agreement(s)

The Governing Board is also requested to issue orders consistent with the above referenced findings, conclusions and recommendations related to the possible expulsion or readmission of pupils in the cases of the following students, herein identified by their district-assigned identification numbers:  200457, 200702, 5296, 202623, 16395, 5184, 304090, 203207, 17628, 401697, 202779, 202311, 303579, 15473, and 303630.  

	Agenda Item Cover

	Request Approval of Commercial Warrant Listing
	Agenda Item Cover and Commercial Warrant Listing


